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2022
169,493,379.56 47.78
27,433,743.61 7.73
18,111,991.44 5.11
15,773,023.89 4.45
9,606,981.90 2.71
9,278,919.96 2.62
8,696,075.18 2.45
5,654,880.68 1.59
5,074,854._26 1.43
4,287,842.17 1.21
3,354,170.83 0.95
3,266,329.74 0.92
3,016,008.92 0.85
2,092,752.08 0.59
1,357,980.88 0.38
1,175,045.85 0.33
1,123,434.72 0.32
1,097,775.00 0.31
896,727.24 0.25
776,444.40 0.22
747,695.98 0.21
720,469.38 0.20
667,920.00 0.19
616,559.00 0.17
558,527.32 0.16
524,526.86 0.15
518,889.60 0.15
516,786.16 0.15
515,324.40 0.15
422,288.44 0.12
143,965.00 0.04
112,630.31 0.03
65,412.37 0.02
297,699,357.13 83.91
23,212,318.88 6.54
389,134.46 0.11
216,625.94 0.06
340,236.55 0.10
710,611.83 0.20
22,333,979.02 6.30
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7,447,020.68 2.10
7,447,020.68 2.10
4,277,805.71 1.21
4,277,805.71 1.21
3,865,924 .30 1.09
3,865,924_30 1.09
1,160,379.12 0.33
1,160,379.12 0.33
4,507,949.88 1.27
600,152.00 0.17
1,113,114.03 0.31
5,235,698.32 1.48
6,644,198.70 1.87
7,884,909.17 2.22
-928,940.70 0.26
10,191,303.62 2.87
11,120,244 .32 3.13
317,779,312.47 89.57
36,986,990.38 10.43
(SSj%ngéSOZ.SS) 100.00
2022
Western Asset Macro
Opportunities 16,398,111.01 24.84 | 407,271,808.12 21.23 | 348,071,453.07 | 97.07
Alternatives Fund, Ltd.
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WA
2022
)
el /8 1.250 | 2080/ 715 45,090,000.00 | 0.95 | 42,879,053.71 | 0.65 | 29,400,089.06 | 8.20
2 | UENICAH 2ONOS 7.750 | 2042711713 | 282,122,000.00 | 0.05 | 14,604,177.84 | 0.04 | 12,544,317.34 | 3.54
3 éNggNg%g eovTT 8.250 | 2020/ /15 [135,821,000,000.00 | 0.00| 9,953,718.92| 0.00| 9,788,818.41| 2.76
4 io;gwg/ggw BON 1.750 | 2032/ /25 59,840,000.00 | 0.15 | 9,268,179.53 | 0.16 | 9,278,919.96 | 2.62
5 [ US TREASRY N/ 3.125 | 2048/ /15 8,000,000.00 | 1.01| 8,088,171.41 | 0.99| 7.895,000.00| 2.23
3.125 5/48
g | US TREASIRY N/ 3.750 | 2043/11/15 7,207,000.00 | 1.13| 8,140,826.02 | 1.07| 7,701,355.16 | 2.17
3.75 11/43
7 gSSIEEASURY /8 3.000 | 2045/ /15 7,170,000.00 | 1.14| 8,202,896.43 | 0.95| 6,785,732.81| 1.91
g | INDONESIA GOV 8.375 | 2034/ /15 | 90,390,000,000.00 | 0.00| 6,615,281.10 | 0.00| 6,566,339.12| 1.85
8.375 3/34
o | JRONESIA GOV 7.000 | 2027/ 715 | 85,788,000,000.00 | 0.00 | 6,345,896.24 | 0.00| 5,858,974.82| 1.65
10| US TREASURY N/ 2.625 | 2020/ /31 5,610,000.00 | 0.99 | 5,572,705.17 | 1.00| 5,587,200.38 | 1.57
2.625 7/29
11| US_TREASURY N/ 1.375 | 2080/ /15 8,200,000.00 | 0.95 | 7,816,047.33 | 0.67| 5,526,031.25| 1.56
1.375 8/50
12 “BA"‘?:AN BONOS 8 8.000 | 2047711/ 98,640,000.00 | 0.05 | 5,194,550.25 | 0.05| 4,491,921.86 | 1.27
13 Jo)R P RIACELC 4.100 | 20467107 5,973,000.00 | 0.83 | 4,928,507.96 | 0.71| 4,246,014.74| 1.20
14 EBSZ'A‘OFZ 7.05 7.050 | 2028/ /19 | 1,112,387,000.00 | 0.01| 16,603,373.65 | 0.00| 4,108,619.96| 1.16
15 éNggNE%’g eovTT 8.250 | 2036/ /15 | 55,046,000,000.00 | 0.00| 4,112,503.68 | 0.00| 3,967,245.85 | 1.12
BANK OF AVER C
16| o o 5.875 3,510,000.00 | 0.99 | 3,473,210.29 | 0.95 | 3,320,528.73 | 0.9
17| BUSSIA-OFZ 8.15 8.150 | 2027/ 7 786,143,000.00 | 0.02 | 13,079,459.52 | 0.00| 2,903,632.30 | 0.82
1g | OCCIDENTAL PET 6.125 | 2031/ 7/ 2,490,000.00 | 1.00 | 2,490,000.00 | 1.07 | 2.667,453.24 | 0.75
6.125 1/31
19 | BRAZIL NTN-F 10 10.000 | 2031/ 7/ 15,754,000.00 | 0.17 | 2,660,135.82 | 0.17| 2,622,310.91| 0.74
20 | CHINA GOVT BON 3.310 | 2025/11/30 17,000,000.00 | 0.15 | 2,535,587.04 | 0.15 | 2,580,435.51 | 0.73
3.31 11/25
21| RSSIAOFZ 7.7 7.700 | 20397 716 |  673,982,000.00 | 0.02 | 12,109,734.86 | 0.00| 2,489,363.77| 0.70
CITIGROUP INC
22| SISROF 5.950 2,480,000.00 | 1.01| 2.504,022.07 | 0.98| 2,427,544.83| o0.68
23 | F7IoHE CORP 51 5.100 | 2040/ 7/ 2,720,000.00 | 0.99 | 2,705,023.67 | 0.89| 2,425,579.80 | 0.68
2 'i%" REP OF 5 5.000 | 2045/ /27 2,990,000.00 | 0.81| 2,415,791.29 | 0.80| 2,390,669.45 | 0.67
o5 | OCCIDENTAL PETE 6.950 | 2036/10/10 4,489,000.00 | 0.52 | 2,347,799.86 | 0.51| 2.288,043.30| o0.64
6.95 10/36
26 5°, RS /8 2.000 | 2050/ /15 2,710,000.00 | 1.18 | 3,191,224.97 | 0.79| 2.,150,639.06 | 0.61
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( ) ()
ANAZON. COIf INC 4.050 | 2047/ /22 2,000,000.00 | 1.15| 2,309,781.61| 0.99 | 1,978,061.24 0.56
4.05 8/47

)

MPLX LP 114,023.00 33.73 3,846,110.45 37.52 4,277,805.71 1.21

( ) ()
DREYFUS QI GOV
CASH NGMT 0.1792 3,865,924.30 1.00 3,865,924.30 1.00 3,865,924.30 1.09

( ) ()
285242019-3/\ R 5.790 | 2034/10/16 2,230,000.00 | 1.00 | 2,230,000.00| 0.91)] 2,034,785.80 0.57

2022

2022

2022
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2022

24,347,671.57 3,277,440 10.00 1,346

2016
62,236,858.97 8,377,704 9.85 1,326

2017
176,302,161.91 23,732,034 10.00 1,346

2018
127,304,201.43 17,136,419 9.26 1,246

2019
131,711,639.07 17,729,704 8.31 1,119

2020
151,552,969.31 20,400,545 8.64 1,163

2021
126,105,338.97 16,975,040 7.12 958

2022
2021 170,448,730.25 22,944,104 9.22 1,241
169,850,544.09 22,863,582 9.06 1,220
10 166,411,121.64 22,400,601 8.98 1,209
11 159,915,978.73 21,526,290 8.79 1,183
12 161,414,530.41 21,728,010 8.89 1,197
2022 153,308,354.12 20,636,838 8.52 1,147
137,152,481.35 18,462,096 7.64 1,028
126,105,338.97 16,975,040 7.12 958
117,222,443_87 15,779,313 6.90 929
115,467,866.15 15,543,129 6.87 925
105,764,408.91 14,236,947 6.63 892
105,357,554.62 14,182,180 6.87 925
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2

11,474,230.39 1,544,546 10.26 1,381

2016
23,267,819.55 3,132,081 10.74 1,446

2017
102,404,146.50 13,784,622 11.57 1,557

2018
91,562,728.03 12,325,259 11.43 1,539

2019
89,506,079.99 12,048,413 10.93 1,471

2020
98,381,379.25 13,243,117 12.15 1,636

2021
78,022,606.24 10,502,623 10.72 1,443

2022
2021 126,351,283.40 17,008,146 13.32 1,793
123,059,194.57 16,564,998 13.17 1,773
10 123,478,770.45 16,621,477 13.11 1,765
11 122,250,220.61 16,456,102 12.91 1,738
12 123,812,771.41 16,666,437 13.14 1,769
2022 119,520,023.77 16,088,590 12.66 1,704
105,110,241.48 14,148,890 11.43 1,539
78,022,606.24 10,502,623 10.72 1,443
70,465,228.76 9,485,324 10.44 1,405
68,839,261.41 9,266,453 10.43 1,404
63,951,987.69 8,608,577 10.12 1,362
64,733,510.95 8,713,778 10.54 1,419
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2,892 1 4
2016 ,892,868,36 9,96
8,496,576,415 9,652

2017
25,232,792,907 9,616

2018
26,439,657,494 8,621

2019
22,738,113,390 7,497

2020
23,149,506,392 7,694
2021 3,149,506,39 69
16,417,326,872 24
2022 6,417,326,8 6,248
2021 24,011,902,549 8,177
22,698,055,243 8,033
10 22,293,313,488 7,951
11 21,086,898,898 7,770
12 20,962,698,408 7,858
2022 19,940,531,060 7,509
17,769,517,067 6,720
16,417,326,872 6,248
15,848,629,948 6,073
14,101,646,173 6,021
13,464,685, 946 5,802
13,738,579,314 6,008
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2
2,221,208,261 10,22
2016 ,221,208,26 0,225
5,179,983,735 10,533
2017
17,990,479,109 11,154
2018
17,274,111,978 10,711
2019
14,661,961,677 9,990
2020
15,442,612,7 11,
2021 5 6 09 030
1 4,216,94 4
2022 3,904,216,940 9,68
2021 17,652,037,261 12,094
17,372,857,330 11,953
10 17,339,835,177 11,905
11 16,945,928,183 11,710
12 17,110,361,857 11,919
2022 16,390,321,623 11,466
14,893,376,728 10,331
13,904,216,940 9,684
13,634,995,841 9,459
13,504,411,065 9,426
13,248,409,100 9,131
13,446,326,243 9,503

2015 11 2016 31
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2015 11 2016 31 0.25 34

2016 2017 31 0.60 81

2017 2018 31 0.60 81

2018 2019 31 0.60 81

2019 2020 31 0.60 81

2020 2021 31 0.60 81

2021 2022 31 0.60 81

2021 0.05 7

0.05 7

10 0.05 7

11 0.05 7

12 0.05 7

2022 0.05 7

0.05 7

0.05 7

0.03 4

0.03 4

0.03 4

0.03 4

2022 0.52 70

2022 3.97 534

2

2015 11 2016 31
2016 2017 31
2017 2018 31
2018 2019 31
2019 2020 31
2020 2021 31
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2021 2022 31
2022
2022
2015 11 2016 31 250
2016 2017 31 600
2017 2018 31 600
2018 2019 31 600
2019 2020 31 600
2020 2021 31 600
2021 2022 31 600
2021 50
50
10 50
11 50
12 50
2022 50
50
50
30
30
30
30
2022 520
2022 3,970
2
2015 11 2016 31
2016 2017 31
2017 2018 31
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2018 2019 31
2019 2020 31
2020 2021 31
2021 2022 31

2022

2022
2015 11 2016 31 2.50
2016 2017 31 4.50
2017 2018 31 7.61
2018 2019 31 1.40
2019 2020 31 3.78
2020 2021 31 11.19
2021 2022 31 10.65
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2
2015 11 2016 31 2.60
2016 2017 31 4.68
2017 2018 31 7.73
2018 2019 31 1.21
2019 2020 31 4.37
2020 2021 31 11.16
2021 2022 31 11.77
2015 11 2016 31 2.14
2016 2017 31 2.89
2017 2018 31 5.84
2018 2019 31 4.11
2019 2020 31 6.08
2020 2021 31 10.63
2021 2022 31 11.00
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2
2015 11 2016 31 2.25
2016 2017 31 3.01
2017 2018 31 5.90
2018 2019 31 3.97
2019 2020 31 6.73
2020 2021 31 10.41
2021 2022 31 12.20
100x%
10 2

10,000 2
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2015 " 2,531,104 95,629 2,435,475
2016 31 (2,531,104) (95,629) (2,435,475)
2016 5,697,043 1,814,569 6,317,949
2017 31 (5,697,043) (1,814,569) (6,317,949)
2017 13,444,989 2,141,097 17,621,841
2018 31 (13,444,989) (2,141,097) (17,621,841)
2018 2,791,566 6,663,936 13,749,471
2019 31 (2,791,566) (6,663,936) (13,749,471)
2019 5,970,646 3,861,307 15,858,810
2020 31 (5,970,646) (3,861,307) (15,858,810)
2020 4,913,822 3,236,530 17,536,102
2021 31 (4,913,822) (3,236,530) (17,536,102)
2021 4,483,499 4,302,802 17,716,799
5092 a1 4,483,499 4,302,802 17,716,799
1,118,645 0 1,118,645
3812 %i (1,118,645) ©) (1,118,645)
2016 2,127,707 1,008,145 2,148,207
2017 31 (2,127,707) (1,098,145) (2,148,207)
2017 7,139,385 440,135 8,847,457
5018 a1 (7,139,385) (440,135) (8.847,457)
2018 1,522,331 2,359,926 8,009,862
2019 31 (1,522,331) (2,359,926) (8,009,862)
2019 2,538,970 2,361,672 8,187,160
2020 31 (2,538,970) (2,361,672) (8,187,160)
2020 2,402,293 2,490,007 8,099,446
2021 31 (2,402,293) (2,490,007) (8,099, 446)
o021 2,971,462 3,792,433 7,278,475
2022 31 2,971,462 3,792,433 7,278,475
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2015 11 306,503 16,173 290,330
2016 31 (306,503) (16,173) (290,330)
2016 671,157 81,150 880,337
2017 31 (671,157) (81,150) (880, 337)
2017 2,053,315 309,632 2,624,020
2018 31 (2,083,315) (309,632) (2,624,020)
2018 800,282 402,896 3,021,406
2019 31 (800,282) (402,896) (3,021,406)
2019 496,264 484,717 3,032,953
2020 31 (496,264) (484,717) (3,032,953)
2020 382,682 406,748 3,008,887
2021 31 (382,682) (406,748) (3,008,887)
2021 133,853 515,047 2,627,693
2022 31 133,853 515,047 2,627,693
2

226,388 9,159 217,229
3812 %i (226,388) (9,159) (217,229)
2016 447,316 172,779 491,766
2017 31 (447,316) (172,779) (491,766)
2017 1,356,568 233,980 1,614,354
2018 31 (1,356,568) (233,980) (1,614,354)
2018 286,740 288,302 1,612,792
2019 31 (286,740) (288,302) (1,612,792)
2019 216,048 361,229 1,467,611
2020 31 (216,048) (361,229) (1,467,611)
2020 241,352 308,906 1,400,057
2021 31 (241,352) (308,906) (1,400,057)
2021 220,909 185,159 1,435,807
2022 31 220,909 185,159 1,435,807
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100 10 0.001
100 10 0.001
10,000 0.001
10,000 0.001

3.85 3.50
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(i) 1 1 1
(ii)0.001 0.001

1
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(iv)
)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
ix
150 14
31 2016 3 31
150 14
25,000,000
30
25,000,000
30

30

116/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

60
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10

60
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2022 31

2022 31

526,180,031 430,888,007 58,001,835
11,570,625 1,557,522

12,923,848 12,953,250 1,743,637

2,050,826 276,062

825,458 111,115

6,886 927

123,046 16,563

458,418,098 61,707,660

2,576,578 346,833

808,949 108,893

1,917,557 258,122

16,026 2,157

517,722 69,691

5,836,832 785,696

452,581,266 60,921,964

126,105,339 17,716,799 7.118 958
78,022,606 7,278,475 10.720 1,443
138,710,957 2,627,693 52.788 7,106

109,742,364 1,435,807 76.433 10,289
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2022 31

506 68
4,049,350 545,083
306,768 41,294
148,151 19,943
113,586 15,290
61,360 8,260
58,697 7,901
30,096 4,051
40,227 5,415
4,808,235 647,237
(4,807,729) (647,168)
14,322,805 1,927,993
(1,189,593) (160,131)
13,133,212 1,767,862
(102,026,491) (13,733,786)
41,787 5,625
(101,984,704) (13,728,161)
(88,851,492) (11,960, 299)

(93,659, 221) (12,607,468)
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2022 31

(4,807,729) (647,168)
13,133,212 1,767,862
(101,984,704) (13,728,161)
(93,659,221) (12,607,468)
(10,938,866) (1,472,481)
(15,121,767) (2,035,541)
(26,060, 633) (3,508,022)
(26,719,086) (3,596,656)
(146,438,940) (19,712,146)
599,020,206 80,634,110

452,581,266 60,921,964
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578,041,028 108,891,754 (168,341,089) 14,322,805 (102,026,491) 430,888,007
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2021 12 31
2026 9 15
6.50-8.38 2039 4 15 6.3 28,547,127
35,406,000 2.25 2052 2 15 7.4 34,938,934 33,436,046
45,440,000 1.25 2050 5 15 7.4 42,558,911 33,436,743
2025 2 15

1.13-5.00 2051 11 15

0.01

0.01

0.01

0.01

0.66

0.05

20.8 94,295,556
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40,108,051 2,971,462 38,467,252 133,853 9,457,695
(38,025, 415) (3,792,433) (44,341, 800) (515,047) (36,240,954)
2,082,636 (820,971) (5,874,548) (381,194) (26,783,259)
23,013,687 7,809,723 111,046,685
(19,157,602) (8,795,441) (137,765,771)
3,856,085 (985,718) (26,719,086)
2022 31
8.642 12.147 69.684 99.578
(0.068) (0.099) (0.542) (0.804)
(0.856) (1.328) (11.005) (22.341)
(0.924) (1.427) (11.547) (23.145)
(0.600) 0.000 (5.349) 0.000
7.118 10.720 52.788 76.433
@ (10.69) (11.75) (16.57) (23.24)
0.78 0.78 0.78 0.78
(0.78) (0.78) (0.78) (0.78)

a
Q@

(€
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526,180,031 430,888,007
19,488,408
526,180,031 430,888,007
526,180,031 430,888,007
4.8 21,693,259

100.0 452,581,266
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March 31, 2022
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Assets

Investments in affiliated investment company, at fair value (cost $526,180,031) 5 430,888,007

Cash equivalents 11,570,625

Foreign currency, at fair value (cost $22,923,848) 12,953,250

Receivable for investments sold 2,050,826

Receivable for units sold #25,458

Interest recenvable 6. A5G

Oiher assets 123,040
Tatal assets A58, 418,008

Liabilities

Redemprions payable 2,576,578

Payable for investments purchased 808,949

Accrued distmbutor fees 1,917,557

Accrued management fees 16,026

Accrued expenses 517,722
Total liabilities 5,836,832
et assers attributable to redeemable unitholders g 452,581,266

USD Monthly Class

£126,1058,339/17,716, 799 units 5 T.118

USD Semi-annual Class

£78,022,606/7.278,475 units b} 1320

TPY Maonthly Class

£138,710,957/2,627,693 units £ 52,788

JPY Semi-annual Class

$109.742,364/1 435,807 units b T6.433

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
3

134/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Investment Income

Interest 5 506
Expenses
Dhstributor fees 4,049,350
Agent company fees 306,768
Management fecs 148,151
Custody 113,586
Trustee fees 61,360
Profiessional 58,697
Administrative, accounting, and transier agent 30,096
Crher 40,227
Total cxpenses 4,808,235
Met invesiment {loss) (4,B077,729)

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments in affiliated investment
companies and foreign currency translation/transactions
Net realized gain ([oss)

Affiliated investment companies 14,322,805
Foreign currency transactions (1,189,593)
Met realized gain 13,133,212
Wet change in unrealized gain (loss)
Affiliated investment companies (102,026,491)
Foreign currency translation 41,787
Met change in unrealized gain (loss) (101, 984,704)
Met realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investmznts in afliliated mvestment
companies and foreign currency translation/transactions (B8,851,492)
Wet (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations §  (93,659.221)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements,
5
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{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended March 31, 2022
{(Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

From operations
Met investment (loss)
Wet realized pain
Met change in unrealized gain (loss)
Wet (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations

From distributions to unitholders
USD Momhly Class
TP Monthly Class

Towal distributions

From participant transactions
Met (decrease) in net assels resulting from participant transactions (Note 6)

Met (decrease) in net assets
Net assets
Beginning of year
End of year

b (4,807,729
13,133,212
(101,984,704)

' (93,659,221)

(10,938 ,866)

(26,060,633)

(26,719,086)

(146,438,040

590,020,206

$ 452,581,266

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6
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Western Asset Total Retum Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. Organization and Investment Objective

Western Asset Total Return Opportunities (the “Fand™) was formed in August 2015 and commenced
operations on September 11, 2015 as a sub-trust of the Western Asset Offshore Funds (“Trust”), a
umit trust established by a trust deed under the Trusts Act (as amended) of the Cayman Islands and
registered under the Murual Fands Act of the Cayman Islands. The Trust is structured a3 an umbrella
wmit trust, which allows it to create multiple sub-trusts, with the aim of segregating assets and
liabilities of each sub-trust, Az of March 31, 2022, there were | 0 sub-trusts of Western Asset Offshore
Funds. Western Asgel Management Company Limited (“WAMCL") is the Trust's Manager. Western
Asset Management Company, LLC (“WAM"), formerly known as Western Assel Management
Company, Western Asset Management Company Pre. Ltd. ("Western Assct Singapore”), Western
Asset Management Company Ltd. (“Western Asset Tokya”), Western Asset Management Company
Distribuidora de Timlos e Valores Mobilidrios Limitada (“Western Asset Brazil™), and Westem Asset
Management Company Pty Ztd. (“Western Asset Melbourne™) are the sub-investment managers
io the Fund {collectively the “Investment Manager”). BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman)
Limited is administrator and trustee to the Fund. The Bank of New York Mellon, a whelly-owned
subsidiary of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, is the custodian and sub-administrator to
the Fund. The Bank of New York Mellon (Singapore Branch) is the registrar and transfer agent to the
Fund. Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd. (Japan) is Agent Company. Mitsubishi
UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd. (Japan) and Monex, Inc. are distributors to the Fund.

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide long-term total retwn by primarily
investing all or substantially &1l of its assets in the Western Asset Macro Opportunities Alternatives
Fund, Ltd. {the “Fund™). The mvestment objective of the Fund is to maximize long-term total return,
consistent with prodent investment management.

At March 31, 2022, the Fund had one unaffiliated unitholder who held 99% of the Fund's units
outstanding. The Fund may be materially impacted by the actions of this unitholder,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“US.
GAAP"), the Fund uses the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, income and expenses are
recorded as earned and incurred, respectively.

The Fund is an investment company which folows accounting and reporting guidance in the
Financial Accounting Standards Board {"FASB™) Accounting Standards Cadification 946, Financial
Services = [nvestment Companies.

Use of Estimates ;

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with TLS, GAAP, requires management to
make estimetes and aasumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosore
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Use of Estimates {(Continued)
of increases and decrezses in net assets from operations dunng the repurhng period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents and Foreign Currency

Cash equivalents and foreign currency consist of eash and foreign currency on deposit with financial
institutions. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued interest, which spproximates fair
value.

The Fund considers all highly liguid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash held in banks periodically exceeds the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation's (“FDIC™) insurance coverage of $250,000 and, as a result, there may be 2
concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of the FINC insurance coverage.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items ineluded in the Fund’s financial staterents are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates. Issuances, redemptions, and valuations of the units are
effected and denominated in the VLS. Dollars (“LSD")

Foreign Currency Translation/Transactions

Investment securities and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into USD amounts based upon prevailing exchange rates on the date of valuation. Purchases and
sales of investment securities, income and expense jiems, and issuance and redemprions of units
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD amounts based upon prevailing exchange
rates on the respective dates of such transactions, Income and expenses are translated into USD
amounts based upon an average of prevailing exchange rates for the year ended March 31, 2022.

The Fund does not isolate that portion of the tesults of operations resulting from fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in the fair value
of investments in affiliated investment companies held. Such fluctuations are included within the
net realized and unrealized gain or loss on investments in affiliated investment companies on the
Statement of Operations.

Net realized foreign exchange gains or losses anse from sales of foreign currencies, including
exchange gains and losses on the settlement of forward foreign currency contracts, currency gains or
losses realized between the trade and settlement dates on investment transactions, and the difference
between the amount of interest recorded on the Fund's books and the USD equivalent of the amounts
actually received or paid. Met unrealized foreign exchange pains or losses arise from changes in the
fair values of assets and labilities, other than investments in affiliated invesiment companies, on the
date of valuation, resulting from c]:-ang::s iz exchange rates.

Certain foreign security and currency transactions may involve considerations aa:ui risks not typically
associated with those of USD denominated transactions as a result of, among other factors, the
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued}

Foreign Currency Translatien/Transactions (Continued)
possibility of lower levels of governmental supervision and regulation of foreign securities markets
and the possibility of political or economic instakility.

Income Taxes

According to the current laws of the Cayman [slands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital
pains or other taxes payable by the Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements.

The Fund intends to conduct its affairs so that it will not be desmed to be engaged in trade or business
in the LS. and, therefore, none of its income will be treated as “effectively connected” with a US.
wrade or business carried on by the Fund. Effectively connected income is subject to US. federal
income tax at the graduated mates applicable to 115, domestic corporations. Certain categories of
income that are not “effectively connected” but zre derived from U.S. sources, including dividends
and interest income, are subject to a LS, tax of thirty percent. However, under the portfolio interest
exemption, the thirty percent tax does not apply to portfolio interest earned. For the year ended
March 31, 2022, interest earned by the Fund qualifies undes the portfolio interest exemption.

The Fund is subject to the authoritative guidance with respect to accounting for and disclosure of
ungertainty in tax positions, which requires the Fund to determine whether a tax position is more
likely than not to be sustained upon examination. Management has analyzed the Fund’s tax positions
fior all open tax years and has concluded that as of March 31, 2022, there are no uncertain tax
pasitions that would require “inancial statement recognition or disclosure. The Fund's policy 1s to
recognize interest and penalties, if any, related to uncertain tax positions as a componest of income
tax expense. For the year ended March 31, 2022, the Fund did not recognize any interest o penalties
for uncertain tax positions. There are curremly no examinations being conducted of the Fund by the
Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing awthority,

Issuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund wnits are issued in multiple classes {each a “Class” and, collectively, the “Classes™). The
Fund currently offers the USD Monthly Class, USD Semi-annual Class (each a “USD Class” and
collectively, the “USD Classes") and the JPY Monthly Class and JPY Semi-annual Class (each a
“IPY Class™ and collectively, the “JPY Classes™t. The USD Classes are denominated in USD and
the JPY Classes in Japanese Yen (“JPY") (each a “Denomination Currency™) in which issuances,
redemptions, and valuation of units are effected end in which units are denominated.

The net asset value of each Class is determined in the Depomination Currency on the relevant
“Dealing” Day. A Dealing Day is every business day on which federal, state or local banks are open
for business in New York, London, Japan and the Cayman Islands and the New York Stock Exchange
and London Exchange is apen for trading. 1ssuarces and redemptions of Fund units are made on
such days, based upon the closing net asset value. The Distrisutor may charge up to 3.5% of the otal
amoust of each subscription, including any applicable consumption or other taxes.
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Western Asset Total Retum Opportunities
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
March 31, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Issuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation (Continued)

The Trustee, in consultation wrth the Investment Manager, may temporarily suspend the determination
of the net asset value of the Zund, and the issuance and redemption of the Fund's units, and may
postpone the date of paymen: of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons, duning any petiod
when it is not reasonably practicable for the Invesiment Manager to fairly datermine the value of the
Fund’ net assets. There were no such occurrences during the year erded March 31, 2022,

Allocation of Income, Expenses, Gains, and Losses

Income, expenses, and realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated on 2 daily basiz to
each Class of units based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class. The Fund will apply
adjustments to the valuarion of its Classes in order to specifically credit or charge to the relevant
Class of units any applicable gains, losses and expenses generated by hedging transactions with
respect to such Classes (e.g., 2ll costs associated with hedging transactions relating to the JP'Y
Class of usits are borne by the JPY Class of units). All Classes of units will bear ratably any gains,
losses and expenses penerated by hedging non-USD denominated investments to the functional
currency.

Redemptions Fayable

Redemptions are recognized as liabilities when the amount requested in the redemption notice
becomes fixed and determinable. This will generally oceur either at the time of the receipt of the
notice or on the last day of a fiscal period, depeading on the nature of the redemplion request, As
a result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based wpon year end net asset values, ane
reflected as redemptions payable on the Statement of Assets and Liahilities ot March 31, 2022
Redemption notices received for which the dollar and unit amounts are not fixed remain i capital
until the net asset value used “o determine the redemption and wnit anounts are determined,

Distributions to Unitholders

Distributions from net invest-aent income, net realized or unrealized gains and/or capital are declared
by the Fuad on the 15th day cf each month for the USD Monthly Clzss and JPY Monthly Class and
on the 15th day of March and September for the USD Semi-annual class and JPY Semi-annual
class and are declared on the preceding day, Distributions are paid in cash or in-kind, a5 may be
determined by the Investmen: Manager, unless the unitholders elect to reinvest in additional units,
Cash distributions with respect to a Class are paid in each Class Denomization Currency.

Recent Accounting Pronoupcement

In March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued Accounting Standards
Update {(“ASU™) No. 2020-14, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848) — Facilitation of the Effects
of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting. In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU No,
2021-01, with further amendments to Topic %48, The amendments in the ASUs provide optional
temporary accounting recognition and financial reporting relief from the effect of certain types of
contract modifications due 1o the planned diseontinuation of the London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR.”") and other interbarik-offered based reference rates as of the end of 2021 and 2023. The
ASUs are effective for certa’n reference rate-related contract modifications that occur during the

1
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Western Asset Total Retum Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Recent Accounting Pronouncement {Continued)
period March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022 Management is reviewing the requirctients
and believes the adoption of these ASUs will not have a material impact on the financial statements.

1 Valuation

The Fund has adopted procedures for determining the value of its investments each “Dealing Day".
Under these procedures, the Fund has delegated its authority to a pricing committee governed by the
Investment Manager to deterriine the value of the Fund's investments each Dealing Diy. The notes
below describe in greater detzil the methodologies used to value the Fund's investments,

Investments inafiliated investment companies are valued utilizing the net asset values provided by the
underlying fund as a practical expedient. The Func applies the practical expedient to its investments
in affiliated investment companies on an investment-by-investment basis, and consistently with the
Fund's entire position in a particular investment, unless it is probable that the Fund will sell a portion
of an investment at an amoun® different from the net asset value of the investment.

The Fund uses both the income and market approzches 1o establish the far value of its investments.
Use of particular techniques and inputs may vary over time based on availability and relevance as
market and economic conditions evelve,

Over-the-counter financial derivative instruments, such as forward foreign currency contracts,
options contracts, swaption contracts, of swap agreements, derive their value from underlying asset
prices, indices, reference rates, and other inpuis or a combination of these factors. These contracts
are normally valued on the basis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quotations. Depending
on the product and the terms of the transaction, the value of financial derivative instruments can be
estimated by a pricing service provider using & series of techniques, including simulation pricing
madels. The pricing models use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets such as issuer
details, indices, spreads, interzst mtes, yield curves, and exchange rates,

Investments in a collective investment vehicle, ircluding investments in investment companies, are
valued using the net asset value of such investment vehicles, as a practical expedient.

The various inputs that are used in determining the fair value of the Fund's assets and Labilities are
summarized into the broad levels listed below:

e Level | —quoted prices in zetive mazkers foe identical investments

e Level 2 —other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar imvestments,
interest sates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, ete.)
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Western Asset Total Retum Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust}
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

i Valuation (Continued)

s Level 3 —significant uncbservable inputs, includ:ng the lovestment Managets owa
assumptions in determining the fair value of investments. Level 3 fair value
techniques include (i) the use of proprietary models that require the use of judgment
and the application of various assurmptions incheding, but not limited to, prepayment
assumptions and default rate assumptions, and (ii) the solicitation of valuations
from third parties (typically, broker-dealers). Third-party valuation providers often
utilize propristary models that are subjective and also require the use of judgment
and the application of various assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment
assumptions and default rate assamptions

The valuation levels are not necessarily an indication of the risk or liquidity associated with investing
in those securities,

Asof March 31, 2022, 100% of the portfolie was velued using net assel valuc as a practical expedient.

4. Investments in Affiliated Investment Companies

The following table summarizes the Fund’s investments in affiliated investment companies (the
“Investes Funds”) as of March 31, 2022. The Fend did not directly pay any management fee or
performance fee to the Investee Funds for the year ended March 31, 2022.The Fund did not receive
any distributions from the affiliated investment companies during the year ended March 31, 2022

Change in
Fair Value Unrealized  Fair Yalue
Al March Rodemptinn Realized Gain At March
Tovesdnment 31, 2021 Purchases FProceeds Gain {Loss) i1, 20212
Wesiern Asset Alpomo
Opporunitics

Abternatives Fund, Ld, 5 STR041028 5 IDBES17S4 5 (IAE341089) 3 14330808 B OI02.026491) § 410EEE 007

Western Asset Macro Opportunities Alternatives Fund, Ltd. — The investment objective 18 to
maximize long-term total retarn, consistent with prudent investiment management. Under normal
markel conditions, the fund expects to imvest primarily in any combination of the following:
securities issued or guaranteed by US. federal, state, local, and city governments, and their
agencies, instrumentalities, municipalities, and sabdivisions; securities issued by US. and non-U.S.
corporations (including Emerging Market lssuers). Redemption is permitted daily. A sharcholder
may redeem 2il or a portion of its shares upon 12 business days® prior written notice to the Fund,
There are no unfinded commiiments due by the Fund as of March 31, 2022, The Investee Fund is
domiciled in the Cayman Islands. The investment in the Investee Fund is valued using the unaudited
ner aszset value of the Investee Fund as of Mareh 31, 2022, The latest audited financial statements
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Western Asset Total Retum Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

4. Tnvestments in Affiliated Investment Companies {Continued)
of the lnvestes Fund for the year ended December 31, 2021 are available upcnn request from the
Investment Manager.

AtMarch 31, 2022, the Fund's ownership in the following issuers, inchuding directly owned securities
and in which other investment companies are invested, represented more than 5% of the Fund’s net

agsety;
Percent
of
Interest et Proportionate
Principal Rate Mabarity Assets Proportionate Fair
Amuount (a) Date {%h) Cost Value
Government of (5 15/2026-
Indonesia ' 6.50-8.38 (41572034 6.3 £28.547,127
United States
Treasury 35,406,004 223 21152052 T4 $34,538,934 32.4536,046
United States
Treasury 45,440,000 1.25 EF152050 T4 42,558,911 33.436,743
United States D2 5025
Treasury 1.13-5.00 1171572051 mns 94 295 556

i Thess ameusts represents the aggregate vilue of varions sccuritiss less than 5% of th Fund's net asses.

5 Charges and Fees

Manager Fee
The Manager’s fes is acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears a* an annual mte of 0.01% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund,

Tovestment Manager Fee
The [nvestment Manager’s fee is acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of
0.01% of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

Trustee Fee
The Trustee fee is acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.01% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimurr of $25,000 per year,

Administrator Fee ;

The Administrator foe is acerved daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.01% of
the average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum fee of 330,000 per year and an additional [Ll:
of $10.,000 annually for each additional class in excess of the first 3 classes.

13
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Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

5. Charges and Fees (Continued)
Distributor Fee
The Distributor fee is accrzed daily and payable quarterly an arrears at an anmual rate of 0.66% of
the average daily net assets of the Fund.
Asent Company Fee
The Agent Company fee is acorued daily and payeble quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.05%
of the average daily net assets of the Pund,
6. Units of Participation
The following represents the Fund’s unit activity for the year ended March 11, 2022,
Year Ended March 31, 2022
LED Menthly Class LS Semb-anawal Class PV Maathly Clas
Uit Ameanl Linits Ao o Umits  Amouwst
Umits Rsacnd] AARRAD S aDa0R0s] 15TIAR S 3Eaman 191,353 § G AT 598
Uniits redeamrs) (4,35, {38,025415] (BTUZA435) 044,341 R00) SLEO4T) (36740554
1\.‘: increnae [Jecreare] d—mﬂ? g ?.ng,ﬁil: BZ0FTI)E _ [5,874,598) :m.m;; (36,783,2%5)
JFY Semil-amwosl Class TE_
Uit Al Linits A g
Uity Bissd] FOM0E 2301567 TARTEE Lo
Umits redenmied (188,188 (19,157,602 (L7954} (437745771
Netimcreate [docresse} _ ZRTS03 3 R84, 0ES (SRS} 5 ___35718.086)
7. Financial Highlights
Year Ended March 31, 2022
UsD UsD JPY JPY
Monthly  Semi-annual Monthly — Semi-annual
Selected Per Unit Data Cluss Class Class Class
Net asset value, beginning of period 3 £.642 § 12.147 § 60.684 § 99,578
Mot investment (lossf! {.063) ({0,055 (0.542) {804
Wet realized and unrealized gaiz (loss) ((0.8356) (1.328) (11,005} (22341}
Total (loss) from investment operations (0.924) (1.417) (11.547) {23.145)
Dhistnibutions 1o unitholders {0 600) 0.000 [5.349) [1.(HM)
Net asset value, end of period 5 7118 § 10.720 & 5278k § 76433
Todal return % {10.69) (11.75) {16.57) (13.24)
Ratios to Averape Nel Assets
Expenises ¥ 078 0.78 0.78 0.78
Met imvestment {loss) % {0.78) (0.78) (0.78) (0.7E)

et investment (loss) per unit has been calculated based upon average units omstanding for the yeas.
Total renern cpboulation is based on the value of a smgle cnit of panticipation outstanding throughout the year.

It repre=ents the percentage change i the net 2s3et value per unit between the beginning and end of the year,

exeluding distrabutons 10 unithelders.
Annualized.

14
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S, Dollars}

T Financial Highlights (Continued)

The above ratios are caleulated for the participating units as a whole. An individual unit holder's
totz] return and ratios may vasy from these ratios based on the timing of capital unit ransactions.

B Fund Investment Risks

Hedging Transactions Risk

Hedging strategies in general are usually intended to limit o reduce investment risk, but can also be
expected to limit or reduce the potential for profit. Not withstanding the foregoing, to the extent that
assels of the Fund attributable to 2 particular Class of shares are insufficient 1o satisfy the liabilities
associated with a hedging transaction with respect to such Class of shares, such amount of the
liabilities that exceed such assets may be borae by the other Classes of shares of the Fund,

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fixed income securities will decline in value because of changes
in interest rates. As nominal interest rates rise, the value of certain fixed income securities held by
the Fund is likely to decrease A nominal interest rate can be described as the sum of a real interest
rate gad an expected inflation rate, Fixed income securities with longer durations tend to be more
sensitive to changes in interest rates, usually making them more volatile than securities with shorter
durations. Duration is used primarily as a measure of the sensitivity of a fixed income’s market price
10 interest rate (Le., yield) movernents.

Liguidity Risk

The Fund may invest in assets and derivatives tkat may not be readily available to sell or dispose
of, including securities whose disposition is restricted by securities laws. The effect of liquidity nsk
is particularly pronounced when low trading volume, lack of a market maker, large position size,
or legal restrictions (including daily price fluctuation limits or “circuit breakers™ or an affiliation
with the issuer of a security) limit or prevent the Fund's abclity to initiate a transaction, sell assets,
or nnwind derivative positions at desirable prices. The Fund is also exposed 1o liquidity risk when it
has an oblipation to purchase particular securities (for example, as a result of entering into reverse
repurchase agreements, writing a put, or closing out a short position).

Copcentmation of Risk

Ta the extent the Fund concentrates its investments in one or more couniries, the value of the Fund's
assets will be especially affected by economic, political anc other faztors affecting such country or
countries, and may fluctuate more widely than the valve of a fund that invests in 2 greater number
of countsies.

9. Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into contractsihat comtain a variety of representations
and warranties, which provide general indemnifications. The Fund’s maximum exposure under thess
arrangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may be made against the Fund
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Western Asset Total Returm Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2022

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

e, Contingencies and Commitments (Continued)

that have not yet occurred. Based on experience, management is of the view that the risk of loss
in coanection with these potential indemnification obligations is remote; however, there can be no
assurance that material liabilities related to such obligations will not arise in the future that could
adversely impact the business of the Fund,

10. Subsequent Events

The Fund has evaluated subsequent events through May 26, 2022, the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. For the period April 1, 2022 through May 26, 2022, there were
£31,892,612 of redemption, which represented 14% of the Fund’s net assets,

On February 24, 2022, Russia commenced a military attack on Ukraine. The outbreak of kostilities
hetween the two couniries could result in move w despread conflict and could have a severe adverse
effect on the region and the markets. In addition, sanctions imposed on Russia by the United States
and other countries, and any sanctions imposed ic the fiture could have a significant adverse impact
on the Russian economy and related markets. The price and liquidity of investments may fluctuate
widely as a result of the conflict and related events. Management is continuing to monitor this
development and evaluate its impact on the Funds. The extent and duration of Russia®s military
actions and the repercussions of such actions are impossible to predict, but could result in significant
market disruption,

l&
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

NUMBER OF FAIR
SHARES cosT VALUE
INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED INVESTMENT COMPANY - #5.2%
UNITED STATES - #5.2%

19 485408 Wesern Asset Mecoro Dpporiunities Allermetives Fane, Lid. §  526,18003! E___ H30EEE Q0T
TOTAL UNITED STATES _ S26,180.031 AR0RAS 20T

TOTAL INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED INVESTMENT COMPANY S SIGINNNI 5 430,888,007

OTHER ASSETS IN EXCESS OF LIABILITIES - 45% 21,693,259

NET ASSETS - 100.0% § 452,581,266
e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financtal statements,

4

147/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 31

2021 31

571,306,561 578,041,028 77,810,103
12,306,641 1,656,597

12,111,018 12,098,634 1,628,597

1,926,880 259,377

1,423,602 191,631

7,169 965

11,493 1,547

605,815,447 81,548,817

2,819,622 379,549

1,395,130 187,798

2,155,436 290,143

65,318 8,792

359,735 48,424

6,795,241 914,707

599,020,206 80,634,110

151,552,970 17,536,102 8.642 1,163
98,381,379 8,099,446 12.147 1,635
209,670,295 3,008,887 69.684 9,380

139,415,562 1,400,057 99.578 13,404
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2021 31

726 98
4,199,164 565,249
318,119 42,822
136,793 18,414
127,247 17,129
119,235 16,050
63,624 8,564
40,911 5,507
71,283 9,595
5,076,376 683,331
(5,075, 650) (683,233)
17,248,691 2,321,846
(362,163) (48,751)
16,886,528 2,273,096
40,742,430 5,484,339
11,869 1,598
40,754,299 5,485,936
57,640,827 7,759,032

52,565,177 7,075,798
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2021 31

(5,075, 650) (683,233)
16,886,528 2,273,096
40,754,299 5,485,936
52,565,177 7,075,798
(9,857,237) (1,326,883)
(17,064,194) (2,297,011)
(26,921,431) (3.623,894)
5,564,163 748,992
31,207,909 4,200,897
567,812,297 76,433,213

599,020,206 80,634,110
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2021 31

2015 2015 11

2021 31
10

2021 31 100
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2021 31

15
15
2017-08 2017-08 )
2017-08
2017-08
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2017-08
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2021 31
2021 31
2021 31
2020 31 2021 31
547,774,630 129,709,556  (157,434,279) 17,248,691 40,742,430 578,041,028
15
2020 12 31
2021 31 2020 12 31
2021 31
. 2026 9 15
Government of Indonesia® .50-9. .
6.50-9.00 2039 4 15 6.8 40,804,112
Government of Mexico 624,392,000 7.75 2042 11 13 5.0 31,339,130 30,180,173
Government of Mexico 8.00 2047 11 7 1.6 10,637,076 9,709,901
) 2026 10 7
Government of Russia® .00-8. .
6.00-8.15 2039 3 16 9.0 53,810,523
United States Treasury 45,440,000
1.25 2050 5 15 5.6 42,391,542 33,609,643
Note/Bond
United States Treasury 1.13-4.50 2031 2 15 8.1 50.730.099 48.713.759
Note/Bond® T 2051 2 15 : oY e
(€5
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0.01 25,000
0.01
30,000
10,000
0.66
0.05
2021 31
2021 31
4,913,822 45,755,090 2,402,293 30,500,829 382,682 30,045,109
(3,236,530) (29,923,986) (2,490,007) (31,160,850) (406,748) (31,867,843)
1,677,292 15,831,104 (87,714) (660,021) (24,066) (1,822,734)
241,352 26,056,222 7,940,149 132,357,250
(308,906) (33,840,408) (6,442,191) (126,793,087)
(67,554) (7,784,186) 1,497,958 5,564,163
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2021 31
8.305 10.932 69.320 92.906
® (0.073) (0.099) (0.621) (0.858)
1.010 1.314 6.643 7.530
0.937 1.215 6.022 6.672
(0.600) 0.000 (5.658) 0.000
8.642 12.147 69.684 99.578
® 11.28 11.11 8.69 7.18
0.79 0.79 0.80 0.80
(0.79) (0.79) (0.80) (0.80)
a
@
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

Mareh 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Aszgels

Investments in affiliated investment company, at fair value (cost $571,306,561) §  STR041,028

Cash equivalents 12,306,641

Foreign currency, at fair value (cost $12,111,018) 12,098 634

Receivable for investments sold 1,926,580

Receivable for units sold 1,423,602

Interest receivable 7,168

Other assets 11,493
Total assets G035 815 447

Liabilities

Redemptions payable 2819622

Payable for investments purchased 1,395,130

Accrued distributor fees 2,155 436

Accrued management fees 65,318

Accrued expenses 359,735
Total liakalities 6,795,241
Net assets attributable 1o redeemable unitholders P 599,020,206

USD Monthly Class

151,552 970/17,536,102 units 5 B.642

USD Sermi-annual Class

£08,38 1,379/8,099 446 units 3 12.147

JPY Monthly Class

3209.670,295/3,008 887 units ¥ 69684

JFY Semi-annual Class

£139,415 562/1,400 057 units % 39 578

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements.

-
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Investment Income

Interest g 126
Expenszes
Dristributor fees 4,199 164
Agent company fees 38119
Professional 136,793
Management fees 127247
Custody 119,235
Trustee fees 63,624
Administrative, accounting, and transfer agent 40911
Other 71,283
Total expenses 5076376
Met irvesment (10s8) (5,075,6500

Met realized and vnrealized gain (loss) on investments in alTilisted iovestment
companies and foreign currency translation/fransactions

Net realized gain (loss)
Affiliated investment companies 17,248,691
Foreign currency transactions (362,163)
Net realized gain 16,886,528
Met change in unrealized gain (loss)
Affiliated investment companies 40,742 430
Foreign currency translation 11,869
Met change in unrealized gain (loss) 40,754,299
Net realized and unrealized gain (1oss) on imvestments in affiliated investment
comparies and foreign currency translation transac ions 57640827
Netincrease in net assets resulting from operations b 52,565,177

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.

4
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

From operations

Met imvestment (loss) g (5.075,6500

Net realized gain 16,886,528

MNet change in unrealized gain (loss) 40,754,299
Met increase in net assets resulting from operations 52,565,177

From distributions to unitholders

USD Monthly Class (9857 .237)
JPY Monthly Class (17,064,194)
Total distributions (26,921,431)

From participant transactions

Met increase in net assets resulting from participant transactions (Mote 63 5,564,163
Net increase in net assets 31,207 909

Mel assels

Beginning of vear 56T 812,297

End of year £ 599,020,206

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
£
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
MNotes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. Organization and Investment Objective

Western Asset Total Retumm Opporminities (the “Fund™) was formed in August 2015 and commenced
operations on September 11, 2015 as a sub-trust of the Western Asset Offshore Funds (“Trost™),
a umit trust established by a trust deed under the Trusts Law (a5 amended) of the Cayman [slands
and registered under the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands. The Trst is structured as
an umbrella nmit trust, which allows it 10 create multiple sub-trusts, with the aim of segregating
assets and labilities of each sub-trust. As of March 31, 2021, there were 10 sub-trusis of Western
Asset Offshore Funds. Western Asset Management Company Limited (“WAMCL") 1s the Trust's
Manager. Western Asset Management Compamny, LLC (“WAM"), formerdy known as Western
Asszet Management Company, Western Asset Management Company Pre. Lul (“"Western Asset
Singapore™), Western Asset Management Company Ltd. (“Western Asset Tokyo™), Western Asset
Management Company Distribuidora de Timlos e Valores Mobilidrios Limitada (“'Western Asset
Brazil"}, and Western Asset Management Company Pry. Lid. (*Western Asset Melbourne™) are the
sib=irmvestment managers to the Fund {(collectively the “Investment Manager™), BNY Mellon Fund
Management { Cavman) Limated 15 administrator and trustee 1o the Fund The Bank of New York
Mellon, a wholly-cowned subsidiary of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, is the custodian
and sub-administrator o the Fund The Bank of New York Mellon (Singapore Branch)is the registrar
and transfer agent to the Fund Mitsubishi UFI Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co. Lud. (Japan) is
Agent Company and Distributor 1o the Fund.

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide long-tenm total return by primanly
irvesting all or substantially all of its assets in the Western Asset Macro Opporiunities Alternatives
Fund, Ltd. {the “Fund™). The investment objective of the Fund is to maximize long-term total return,
consistent with prudent investment management.

At March 31, 2021, the Fund had one unaffiliated unitholder who held 100% of the Fund's units
ostanding. The Fund may be materially impacted by the actions of this unitholder.

s Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

In conformty with generally accepted accounting pninciples in the Umited States of Amenca (TS,
GAAF™), the Fund uses the accrual basis of acconnting. Accordingly, income and expenses are
recorded as eamed and incorred, respectively.

The Fund iz an investment company which follows accounting and reporting guidance in the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") A ccounting Standards Codification 946, Financial
Services — Investment Companies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with US, GAAF, requires management to
make eztimates and azsumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilites, disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Use of Estimates (Continued)
of increages and decreases in net assets from operations during the reporting period. Acmal results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents and Foreign Currency

Cash equivalents and foreign currency consist of cash and foreign currency on deposit with financial
mstintions. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued mterest, which approximates fair
value.

The Fund considers all highly liquid irvestments with a mamnty of three months or less when
purchased 1o be cash equivalents. Cash held in banks periodically exceeds the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation’s ("FDIC") insurance coverage of $250,000, and as a result, there is a
concentration of credit fsk related o amounts in excess of the FDIC insurnee coverage,

Funetional and Presentation Currency

Items inclpded in the Fund's financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic ervironment in which it operates. Issnances, redemptions, and valuations of the units are
effected and denominated in the US. Dollars (“USD™),

Foreign Currency TranslationTransactions

Investment securities and other assets and labilities dencminated in foreign currencies are translated
into USD amounts based upon prevailing exchange rates on the date of valuation. Purchases and
gales of investment securities, income and expense items, and issuance and redemptions of units
denomanated in foreign currencies are translated inte USD amounts based upon prevailing exchangs
mtes on the respectve dates of such transactions. Income and expenses are translated o USD
amounts based upon an average of prevailing exchange rates for the year ended March 31, 2021,

The Fund does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from fluciuations in
foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctiations arising from changes in the fair value
of investments in affiliated investment companies held. Such flucmations are included within the
net realized and unrealized gain or loss on investments in affiliated investment companies on the
Statement of Operations.

Met realized foreign exchange gains or losses anse from sales of foreign currencies, inchuding
exchange gains and logses on the setement of forward foreign currency coNtracts, CUTENcy gains or
losses realized between the trade and settlement dates on investment transactions, and the difference
between the amount of interest recorded on the Fund’s books and the USD equivalent of the amounts
actally received or paid. Net unrealized foreign exchange gaing or logses anse from changes in the
fair values of assets and liabilities, other than imvestments in affliated imvestment companies, on the
date of valuation, resulting from changes in exchange rates.

Certain foreign security and currency transactions may involve considerations and risks not typically
associated with those of USDy denominated transactions as a result of, ameng other factors, the
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Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Foreign Currency Translation Transactions (Continued)
possibility of lower levels of govermmental supervision and regulation of foreign secunties markets
and the possibality of political or economic instabality

Inenme Taxes

According to the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital
gaing or other taxes payable by the Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements.

The Fund intends to conduct its affairs go that it will not be deemed 1o be engaged in trade or business
in the US. and, therefore, none of its income will be treated as “effectively connected” with a US.
trade or business carried on by the Fund. Effectively connected income is subject to US, federal
income tax at the graduated rates applicable 1o US. domestic corporations. Certain categories of
incomme that are not “effectively connected” but are denved from LS. sources, including dividends
and inferest income, are subject to a LS. tax of thirty percent. However, under the portfolio interest
exemption, the thirty percent tax does not apply to portfolio interest earned. For the year ended
March 31, 2021, interest earned by the Fund gualifies under the portfolio interest exemption

The Fund iz subject 1o the authoritative guidance with regpect 1o accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions, which requires the Fund 1o determine whether a tax pogition is more
likely than not to be sustained upon examination Management has analyzed the Fund's tax positions
for all open tax years and has concluded that as of March 31, 2021, there are no uncertamn tax
posations that would reguire financial ftatement recognition or disclosure. The Fund's policy is o
recognize interest and penalties, iF any, related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income
tax expense. For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Fund did not recognize any intérest or penalties
for uncertain tax positions. There are currently no examinations being conducted of the Fund by the
Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing anthority

Issuanees and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are izsued in multiple classes (each a “Class” and, collectively, the “Classes™). The
Fund currently offers the USD Monthly Class, USD Semi-anmual Clags (each 2 “USD Class™ and
collectively, the “USD Classes™) and the JPY Monthly Class and JPY Semi-annual Class {each a
“IPY Class” and collectively, the “JPY Classes”). The USD Classes are denominated in USD and
the JFY Classes in Japanese Yen (“JPY™) (each a “Denomanation Currency™) in which issnances,
redemptions, and valuation of units are effected and in which units are denominated

The net asset value of each Class is determined in the Denonunation Currency on the relevant
“Dealing” Day. A Dealing Day is every business day on which federal, state or local banks are open
for business in New York, London, Japan and the Cayman [slands and the New York Stock Exchange
and London Exchange 15 open for trading. Issuances and redemptions of Fund units are made on
such days, based upon the closing net asset value, The Distributor may charge up to 3.5% of the total
amount of each subscription, including any applicable consumption or other taxes.

165/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Western Asset Total Return Opportunities
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March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Issuaneces and Redemptions of Units of Participation (Contimued)

The Trustee, in consultation with the Invesmment Manager, may temporarily suspend the determination
of the net asset value of the Fund, and the issuance and redemption of the Fund's units, and may
postpone the date of payment of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons, during any period
when it is not reasonably practicabde for the Investment Manager (o fairly determine the value of the
Fund’s net assets. There were no such occurrences duning year ended March 31, 2021

Allocation of Income, Expenses, (Gains, and Losses

Income, expenses, and realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated on a daily basis o
each Class of units based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class. The Fund will apply
adjustments 1o the valuation of it Clasges in order 1o specifically credit or charge 1o the relevam
Clazs of units any applicable gaing, losses and expenses generated by hedgmng transactions with
respect to such Classes (eg., all costs associated with hedging transactions relating to the JPY of
units are borme by the JPY of unitz). All Classes of units will bear ratably any gains, losses and
expenses generated by hedgng non-USD denominated investmenis 1o the funciional currency.

Redemptions Pavable

Redemptions are recogmzed as labihties when the amount requested in the redemption notice
becomes fixed and determinable. This will generally occur either at the time of the receipt of the
notice or on the last day of a fiscal period, depending on the nature of the redemption request. As
a result, redemptions paid afler the end of the year, but based upon year end net asset values, are
reflected as redempions payable on the Statement of Assets and Lisbilities at March 31, 2021.
Redemption notices received for which the dollar and umit amounts are not fixed remain in capital
until the net asset value used to determine the redemption and unit amounts are determined

Distributions to Unitholders

Distributions from net investment income, net realized orunrealized gains and'or capital are declared
by the Fund on the 15th day of each month for the USD Monthly Class and JPY Monthly Class and
on the 15th day of March and September for the USD Semi-annual class and JPY Semi-annual
class and are declared on the preceding day. Distributions are paid in cash or in-kind as may be
determined by the Investment Manager, unless the unitholders elect 1o reinvest in additional units.
Cash distributions with respect 1o a Class are paid in each Class Denomination Currency,

Recent Aceounting Pronouncement

The Fund has made a change in accounting principle and adopted the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Accounting Standards Update 201 7-08 (“ASU 2017-
0873, Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Diebt Securities. ASU 2017-08 shortens the
amortisation period For certann callable debt secunities held at a premium; specifically, requiring the
premuwm to be amortized to the eardiest call date. Pnor to ASU 2017-08, premuums on callable debt
securities were generally amortized to maturity date. ASU 201 7-08 is intended to more closely align
the amortization period with the expectations incorporated into the market pricing on the underlying
security. ASU 2017-08 does not require an accounting change for securities held at a discount; the
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March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Recent Accounting Propouncement {Continued)
discount continues to be amortzed 1o maturity date. Upon evaluation, the Fund has concludad that
the change in accounting principle does not matenally impact the financial statement amounts

3 Valuation

The Fund has adopted procedures for determining the value of its investments each “Dealing Day™.
Under these procedures, the Fund has delegated its authority to a pricing committee governed by the
Investment Manager to determing the value of the Funds imvestments ¢ach Dealing Day. The notes
below describe in greater detail the methodologies used to value the Fund's mvestments

Investments inaMlisted imvestment companies are valued milizng the netagset values provided by the
underlying fimd as a practical expedient. The Fund applies the practical expedient to its investments
in affiliated investment companies on an investment-by-investment basis, and consistently with the
Fund's entire position in @ particular investment, unless it is probable that the Fund will sell a portion
of an investment at an amount different from the net asset value of the investment.

The Fund nges both the income and market approaches 1o establish the fair value of 115 imvestments,
Use of particular techniques and inpuls may vary over ime based on availability and relevance as
market and economic conditions eviolve.

Over-the-counter financial dedvative instruments, such as forward foreign currency comtracts,
options contracts, swaplion contracts, or swap agreements, derive their value from underying asset
prices, indices, reference rates, and other inputs or a combination of these factors. These contracts
are normally valued on the bazis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quatations. Depending
o the product and the terms of the transaction, the value of financial derivative instruments can be
estimated by a pricing service provider using a series of technigues, including simulation pricing
models. The pricing models use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets such as issuer
detals, indices, spreads, interest rates, yield curves, and exchange rates.

Investments in a collective investment velicle, including invesuments in investment companies, are
valued using the net asset value of such investment vehicles, as a practical expedient

The various inputs that are used in determarning the fair value of the Fund's assets and liabilites are
summanzed into the broad levels listed below:

#  Level | —guoted prices in active markets for identical investments

& Level 2 —other significant observable mputs (inclueding quoted prices for similar investments,
interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, ete.)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

3 Valuation (Continmed)

&  [evel 3 —significant unobservable impats, including the [nvestment Managers own
assumplions  in determining the fair value of ivestments. Level 3 fair value
techniques include (i) the use of proprietary models that require the use of judgment
and the application of varions assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment
assumptions and default rate agsumptions, and (ii) the solicitation of valuwations
from third parties (typically, broker-dealers). Third-party valuation providers often
utilize proprietary models that are subjective and also require the use of judgment
and the application of various assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment
agsumptions and defanlt rate assumptions

The valuation levels are not necessarily an indication of the risk or liquidity associated with investing
i thoge securities.

Az of March 31, 2021, 100% of the portfolio was valued using NAV as a practical expedient

4. DIivestments in Affiliated Investment Companies

The following table summanzes the Fund's investments in affiliated investment companies (the
“Investee Funds™) as of March 31, 2021. The Fund did not directly pay any management fee or
performance fee to the Investee Funds for the year ended March 31, 2021 The Fund did not receive
any distributions from the affiliated investment companies during the year ended March 31, 2021,

Change in
Fair Value Unrealized  Fair Value
At March Redemption  Realized Gain At March
Tovestment 51,2020 Purchases Proceeds Gain {Loos) 31,2021
Wagtarn Asset Masmo
Crppartuinitiee Alamativas
Pund Ltd § SanTMsl0 3 13 TRSSE FOSTH3AEM) 3 1T Edsn 3 a0,74i430 § 5T O04100%

Western Asset Macro Opportunities Alternatives Fund, Ltd — The investment objective is 1o
maximize long-term total return, consistent with prudent investment management. Under normal
market condifions, the fimd expects to invest primarily in any combination of the following:
securities issued or guaranteed by U5 federal, state, local, and city governments, and their
agencies, instrumentalities, mumaeapalities, and subdivisions, secunties issued by US. and non-115.
corporations (including Emerging Market Issuers). Redemption is permitted daily. A shareholder
may redeem all or a portion of its shares upon 15 business days’ prior written notice to the Fund.
There are no unfunded commitments due by the Fumd as of December 31, 2020, The Investee Fundis
domiciled in the Cayman Islands. The imvestment in the Investee Fund is valued using the unaudited
net asset value of the Investee Fund as of March 31, 2021 The latest andited financial statements
of the Investee Fund for the year emded December 31, 2020 are available upon request from the
Investment Manager.
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

4, Ivestments in Affiliated Investment Companies (Continued)

At March31, 2021, the Fund's ownership in the following issuers, including directly owned securities
and in which other irvestment companies are invested, represented more than 3% of the Fund’s net

agsels,
Percent
of
Interest Net Proportionate
Principal Rate Matarity Aszets Propor tionate Fair
Aot (%) Date (%) Cost Value
Government of 091 572 26
Indonesia v 650500 0441 52039 6.8 & A08M.112
Ciovernment of
Mexico S624 392 000 1.75 11/13/2042 5.0 31,33%.130 J0180,173
Government of
Mexico 8.0 1107 2047 1.6 10,637,076 o, 700,901
Giovernment of 1WOT2026-
Rusgia Y E00-8.15 03162030 9.0 53810523
United States
Treasury/Bonod 45 440,000 1.25 051 52050 5.4 41,391,542 33,600 643
United States 021572031«
Treasury/Bond" 1.13-4.50 02/15/2051 81 0,730,090 48,713,750

@ These amounis represents the aggregate value of various securities bess than 5% of the Fund s net assets.

5 Charges and Fees

Manager Fee
The Mamager's fee 1% acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anmual rate of 0.01% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund.

Irvestment Manager Fee
The Ivesment Manager's fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of
0.01% of the average daily net asseis of the Fund

Trustee Fee
The Trustes fee 15 accrued daiky and payable quartery in arrears at an anneal rate of 0.01% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund or & minimum of £25 000 per year

Administrator Fee

The Administrator fee iz acerned daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anmal rate of 0.01% of
the average daily net asgets of the Fund or a minimum fee of 330,000 per year and an additional fee
of 510,000 anmually for each additional class in excess of the first 3 classes,
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
March 31, 2021
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

5, Charges and Fees (Continued)
Distributor Fee

The Distributor fee is accrued daily and payable quartedly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.66% of

the average dmly net assets of the Fund.

Agent Com pany Fee

The Agent Company fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of (.05%

of the average datly net assets of the Fund.

b, Units of Participation

The Following represents the Fund's unit activity for the year ended March 31, 2021,

Year Ended Manch 31, 2021
VS0 M enahly Clada LISI Kok annual Tl JPY M o thby s
Units Admising nits A il mnics Amnoang
Uity Essped d5913,822 § 45,755,080 2402293 § 30,300,519 JEr6EZ § 0,005,103
Unita radesmesd (3226 5200 (29,923 9EE) {2, 400,007y {31,160 RS0 (404, 48) {31 857,543}

Par trosmighe (decreiae’

LETT20E [ECEINIL] Ena s [B80031) (24,0448 § (82 T340

JPY Semb amomal Cliss

Tlnits Agnount
Elnita lamped FETREE R 26,056,222
Ll redesmed (208, 506) (33,840 40}

7,940,149 5

1 nits A izl
132 357,350

(A4a2191Y (126,793 087)

Mt mosease (decoeasa)

— s ooeaise _ ldwmesf s
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

7. Finaneial Highlights
Year Ended March 31, 2021

UsD Us JPY JPY

Monthly Bemd-annual Monthly Semi-annnaal
Selected Per Unit Data Class Class Class Class
et asset value, beginning of year b3 §305 3 10932 § 69320 % 925906
et imvestment (Joss)'™ {0.073) {095} (621) ((LB5E)
et realized and unrealized gain (loss) I [ 1.314 G643 7.550
Total income from investment aperations 0,937 1.215 6022 6672
Distributions to unitholders (0,600} (040 (5.658) 0,000
Net asset value, end of year g 8642 § 12147 % HP.684 5 09 578
Total retum %% - 1L 1Ll 869 718
Ratios to Average Net Assets
Expenses % 0.7% 0.7% 080 0,50
et imvestment Incoms %% 0. 79 {0.79) (D8] {0,800

A Net investment income per unit las been caloulaed based upon average units outstanding for the year

B Total return caleulation is based on the value of a single unit of participation outstanding ihroughout the yez.
It represents the percentage change in the net asset value per unit betaween the beginning and end of the year,
exchuding distributions to unitholders,

The above mtios are calculated for the participating units a5 a whole, An individual umt holder's
total return and ratios may vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital unit transactions.

B Fund Investment Risks
Hedging Transactions Rigk

Hedging strategies in general are nsually intended 1o limit or reduce investment risk, but can also be
expected tolimit of reduce the potential for profit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that
assets of the Fund attributable to a particular Class of units are insnfficient to satisfy the habilities
associated with a hedging transaction with respect 1o such Class of units, such amount of the
liabilities that exceed such assets may be borne by the other Classes of unats of the Fund

Liquidity Risk

The Fumnd may invest in assets amnd derivatives that may not be readily available to sell or dispose
of, including secunfies whese disposition is restricted by secunities laws. The effect of hqudity nsk
iz particularly pronounced when Llow trading volume, lack of a market maker, large position size,
or legal restrictions (including daily price fluctation limits or “circuit breakers” or an affiliation
with the issuer of a security) limit or prevent the Fund's ability to initiate a transaction, sell assets,
or unwind derivative positions at desirable prices. The Fund is also exposed 1o liquidity risk when it
has an obligation to purchase particular securities { for example, as a result of entening info reverse
repurchase agreements, wrting a put, or closing ont 4 short pogition),

171/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Western Asset Total Return Opportunities

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
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March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

. Fund Investment Risks (Continued)
Concentration of Risk

To the extent the Fund concentrates its investments in one or more countries, the value of the Fund's
assets will be especially affected by economic, pohitical and other factors affecting such country or
countries, and may fluctieate more widely than the value of a fund that invests in a greater number
of countries

9. Cantingencies and Commitments

In the normal conrse of buziness, the Fund ¢nters into contracts that contain a varety of representations
and warranties, which provide general indemmifications. The Fund's maximum exposure under these
arrangements is unknown, as this would imvolve fiture claims that may be made against the Fund
that have not yet occurred. Based on experience, management is of the view that the nsk of loss
in connection with these potential indemnification obligations is remote; however, there can be no
assurance that material liabilides related 10 such obligations will not arise in the finure that could
adversely impact the business of the Fund.

10, Subsequent Events

As of May 27, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, no subsequent
events or transactions had occurred that would have materially impacted the financial statements as
presented
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2022
372,667,452.93 50,164,765,839
14,082,749.25 1,895,678,877
358,584,703.68 48,269,086,962
15,324,924
6,141,708
2,286,665
1,414,885
6.87 925
10.54 1,419
6,008
9,503
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11,050,010 14 8,744
11,050,010 100,010
1,095
100 1,095
1,195 16 859
1CAAP
1940
SEC FCA

2022 438 9,800
2022 10

178,308,153,542
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2021 2020
30
12 3,919,186 527,562 539,966 72,685
3,919,186 527,562 539,966 72,685
13 21,969,559 2,957,322 21,209,148 2,854,963
13 405,469 54,580 488,959 65,819
14 33,319,316 4,485,113 34,129,277 4,594,142
26,322,699 3,543,299 12,856,283 1,730,584
82,017,043 11,040,314 68,683,667 9,245,508
16 (17,170,932) (2,311,379)  (18,219,000) (2,452,460)
64,846,111 8,728,935 50,464,667 6,793,049
68,765,297 9,256,497 51,004,633 6,865,734
16 - - (23,651) (3,184)
17 (101,043) (13,601) (626,622) (84,350)
68,664,254 9,242,895 50,354,360 6,778,200
18 11,050,010 1,487,442 11,050,010 1,487,442
8 43,008 5,789 - -
57,571,236 7,749,664 39,304,350 5,290,759
68,664,254 9,242,895 50,354,360 6,778,200
2022 17
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30 18
2021 30 2020 31
18 12

125,752,665 16,927,566 76,184,956 10,255,257
- (103,969,340)  (13,995,313)  (64,867,187)  (8,731,772)
837,398 112,722 927,544 124,857
- - (7,245) (975)
22,620,723 3,044,976 12,238,068 1,647,366
10 (4,353,837) (586,070)  (2,729,498) (367,418)
18,266,886 2,458,906 9,508,570 1,279,949
39,304,350 5,290,759 44,795,780 6,029,960
18,266,886 2,458,906 9,508,570 1,279,949
1 - - (15,000,000) (2,019,150)
57,571,236 7,749,664 39,304,350 5,290,759
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2021 30
17
(1)
)
2021 30 2020 31
18 12
19,837,967 8,839,481
33,177,206 19,062,498
20,548,122 12,201,574
52,189,370 36,081,403

125,752,665 76,184,956
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2021 30 2020 31
18 12
281,243 196,730
16,773 6,199
2,401,527 1,696,788
151,492 24,598
i} 7,245
261,832 441,911
36,998 24,666
2,290 -
(104,777) (313,990)
(225,177) (108, 450)
(418,684) 266,706
(48,489) (613,554)
2021 30 2020 31
18 12
30,876,675 17,473,977
4,311,786 2,443,109
1,365,527 160,362
1,424,573 876,477
37,978,561 20,953,925
2021 30 2020 31
18 12
24 23
13 14
25 24
62 61
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2021 30 2020 31
18 12
2,653,608 1,611,692
73,846 44,906
1,196,335 502,143
3,923,789 2,158,740
2020
2020
2020
2017 2018 2019 2020
447,662 2020 173,535
2025 7
100%
100%
%
2020

14

43,008
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2,286,003 2021 30
2020 2020 1,910,985
2,117,269 2020 1,861,870
345,654 2020 182,490
4,035,312 2020 1,356,598
452,641 2020 194,071
1,424,573 2020 876,477
2021 30 2020
10
2021 30 2020 31
18 12
4,063,865 2,482,332
159,535 309,818
46,948 (33,486)
4,270,348 2,758,664
83,490 (29,166)

4,353,837 2,729,498
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2021
2020
2021
d
11
2021

30 18 2021 30 18
19 2020 19 2020
2021 30 2020
18 12
22,620,723 12,238,068
19 2020 19 4,297,937 2,325,233
15,871 29,211
159,535 309,818
46,948 (33,486)
(263,299) 135,028
13,355 (7,140)
83,490 (29,166)
4,353,837 2,729,498
132,811 356,148 488,959
(290, 439) 206,949 (83,490)
30 (157,628) 563,097 405,469
i i
2017 19
2021 10 19
30 18 2020 31
15,000,000
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466,377 4,492 100,861 136,457 3,875,970 4,584,157
89,119 - - - 3,753,201 3,842,320
(235,472) - (2,198) - (3,785,151) _(4,022,821)
320,024 4,492 98,663 136,457 3,844,020 4,403,656
270,933 2,006 55,212 - 3,716,040 4,044,191
169,297 1,348 37,426 - 252,739 460,810
(233,182) - (2,198) - (3,785,151) _(4,020,531)
207,048 3,354 90,440 - 183,628 484,470
112,976 1,138 8,223 136,457 3,660,392 3,919,186
195,444 2,486 45,649 136,457 159,930 539,966

8,222
45,220
2021 30 2020 31

13,886,928 13,069,845

7,264,550 6,818,647

209,246 286,763

608,835 1,033,893

21,969,559 21,209,148

6,200,000 2020 6,100,000

2022 28 SOFR
10
35,260 2020 42,579
405,469 2020 488,959
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2021 30 2020 31
2,208,475 3,503,823
12,626 34,949
5,349,166 3,827,531
9,600,665 10,852,697
17,170,932 18,219,000
- 23,651

23,651
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12,626 34,949
- 23,651
12,626 58,600
2020
10 2020 11
10
30 10 11
101,043 2020 599,055
2021 30
2021 30
2021 30 2020 31

2019 626,622 1,623,200

24,332 (48,101)

(549,910) (948,477)

30 2020 31 101,044 626,622

2021 30 2020 31
100,010
100,010 100,010 100,010
10,950,000
10,950,000 10,950,000 10,950,000
11,050,010 11,050,010
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 20
Statement of financial position as at 30 September 2021
Registered No. 2479672

Note 30 September 31 March
2021 2020
5 5
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible asseis 12 3,919,185 339,966
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 3,919,186 539,966
CURRENT ASSETS
DEBTORS: amourts falling due within one year 13 21,969,559 21,209,148
DEBTORS: amounts falling due after more than one year 13 405 469 488,959
Investments 14 33319316 34,120277
Cash at bank and in hand 6,322,659 12,856,283
82,017,043 68,683,667

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one yoar 15 {17,170,932) (18,219,000}
MNET CURRENT ASSETS 64,846,111 50,464,667
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 68,765 207 51,004,633
CBEDITORS: amounts falling due after more than one year 18 - (23,651)
Provisions for liabilities 17 (101,043) (626,622)
NET ASSETS 68,664,254 NEﬂEW
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 18 11,050,010 11,050,010
Equity reserve & 43 008 -
Retained camings 57,571,236 39,304,350
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 68,664,254 50,354,360

The notes on pages 21 1o 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 19 to 38 were approved for issue by the board and signed om its behalf

DocuSigred by
[.,mm_m.m ............. M. Zelouf Date: January 17, 2022

194/261



DacuSign Erwslopa ID; 67584 3DA-E216-4FEA-AT2C-BRABCDI0DTANT

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of income and retained earnings
for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021

Registered No. 2479672

Tumever

Admiristrative expenses

Inierest receivable and similar income
Interest payuble and similer oxpeoscs
Profit before taation

Tux on profit

Profit for the financial period

Retuined eumings al the beginning of the periad
Profit for the fimncial period
Dividends

Retuined camings ot the cod of the period

Hose

4
5,6,7.89
5

5

(1]

All amounts are in respect of continuing activities.

19
18 moath period ended 12 month period ended
30 September 2021 31 March 2020

s 5

125,752,665 76,184,956

(103,969,340) (64,867,187)

237,308 927,544

- (7.245)

22,520,723 12,238,068

(4,353,837) (2,T29,498)

18,266,886 9,508,570

39,304,350 44,795,780

18,266,885 9,508,570

" {15,000,000)

S7571,136 39,304,350

The notes on pages 21 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

195/261



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DocuSign Erwslopa ID; 67584 3DA-E216-4FEA-AT2C-BRABCDZ0DTANT

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 21

1. Gemeral information

Western Assct Management Company Limited (“the Company™), is an investment manager, principally
providing investment managemeni services to both external clients and io clients of its affiliates. The
Company is suthorised by the FCA and makes its Pillar 3 disclosures on its website
www, westornasset.com.

The Company is 8 company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled under the laws of England
and Wales. The address of its principal place of business is 10 Exchange Square, Primrose Street,
London EC2A 2EN, The ultimate parent company is Franklin Resources, Ing. (“Parent™),

2. Statement of compliamce

These individual financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, incloding Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ircland”™ (“FRS 102"), and the Companics Act 2006,

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

() Basis of preparation
These separate financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical expericnce and other factors, including expectations of future cvents that are belicved to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting sccounting estimates will, by definition
uldﬂmuqmlﬂ::rﬂlutﬂduﬁudmmﬂh During the period, there were no material critical accounting

FRS lﬂzuljumnmﬂifymgmuroumdmlmn exemptions, subject to certain conditions,
which have been complied with.

The Company has taken advantage of the following exemptions:

(i} from disclosing a reconciliation of the number of shares ouisianding at the beginning and end
of the period;

(ii) from preparing a statement of cash flows, on the basis that it is a qualifying entity and the
statement of cash flows included in the conmsolidated financial statements of the Parent
includes the Company's cash flows;
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 22

3. Summary of significant sccounting policies (comtinued)

(iii) from disclosing details of financial instruments, on the basis that it is a qualifying entity and
disclosure of financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade payables are included
in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent;

(iv) from disclosing details of certain share-based payment arrangements required under FRS 102
section 26 in respect of shares based payments of the Parent issued fo employees of the
Company by the Parent which are presented in those financial statements;

(v) from disclosing the Company's key management personne] compensation in total, as required
by FRS 102 paragraph 33.7.

(c) Functional currency
The functional and reporting eurrency of the Company is US Dollar, as the Directors consider this
to be the most appropriate currency for the Company*s business.

(d) Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into US Dollars at the balance sheet
date. Transactions during the period expressed in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars
at the rate of exchange ruling in the month in which they occur. Any foreign exchange differences
are laken 1o the Staternent of [ncome and Retained Earnings in the year in which they arise,

Foreign curtency non-monetary assels are carried in the balance sheet translated into US Dollars at
historic rates of exchange. This is determined using the month end rate of exchange for the month
in which they were acquired.

The £/ US Dollar rate used at the balance sheet date is 1347250 (2020: 1.239839)
The average rate for the balance sheet for the year was 1.372816 (2020: 1.270759)

{e) Reveoue recognition
Turmnover or revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and

represents the amount receivable for investment management services rendened, net of any rebates
allowed and value added taxes. Revenue in respect of performance fees is recognised in the
financial statements at the end of the related comtractual performance period when all performance
criteria have been met and the outcome of the transaction can be measured reliably.

{f) Employee benefits
The Company provides a range of benefits to employees, incloding annual bonus arrangements,
paid holiday arrangements and defined contribution pension plans.

(i) Short Term Bencfits
Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are
recognised as an cxpense in the period in which the service is received.

(i) Incentive Plans
The Company operates an Employec Benefit Trust (“EBT™) as part of the owverall
remuneration strategy for employees. Annually, a bonus award, as determined by the
Company, may be paid into the EBT, Where the EBT is considered to remain under the control
of the Company, the assets and liabilities of the EBT are included in the Company's financial
statements until they become fully vested and are paid to the relevant employees. See Notes 7
and 8 for farther detadl.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 23

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (comtinued)
{f)

(ii) Jrcentive Plans (continued)
The Company has set up a Group Personal Pension Plan, which is a defined contribution
scheme and is administered by a third party. Contributions o the pension scheme are charped
to the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings. See Note 9 for further details.

(iil) Amnual Bonus Plan
The Company operates an annual bonus plan for employees. An expense is recognised in the
Statement of Income and Retained Eamings when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation to make payments under the plan as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

(iv) Share Based Payments
The Company has accounted for share-based payments in line with FRS 102 as equity settled
transactions. The recharge from the Parent is recorded as an intercompany payable position,
with a corresponding charge in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings as services are
rendered.

() Taxation
Taxation expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting
pericd. Tax is recognised in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings.
Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.

(1) Current Tax
Current tax 1s the amount of corporation tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year
or prior years, Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the period end.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax refurns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to imterpretation. It cstablishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,

(ii) Deferred Tax
Dieferred tax arises from timing differences. These timing differences arise from the inclusion
of income and expenses in lax assessmenis in periods different from those in which they ane
recognised in financial statements,

Deeferred tax is recognised on all timing differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax losses

and other deferred tax assets are oaly recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax lisbilities or other future taxable profits.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 24

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (comtinued)

(i) Deferred Teoe (contimued)
Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the period end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

(h) Tangible fixed assets
The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost, including any incidenial expenses of
acquisition. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the tangible fixed assets on a straight
ling basis over their expected cconomic lives. The principal annual rates used for the purpose are:

IT & Communications equipment 33%
Office equipment 20% - 33%

Depreciation is charged on &8 monthly basis and a full month's charge is made in the month
following acquisition.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the remaining life of the relevant lease. Depreciation
for artwork is not provided as no diminution of its value is expected.

) Dividends
Dividends and other distributions to the Company's shareholder are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by
the board of direciors. These amounts are recognised in the Statement of Income and Retained
Eamings.

() Investments
The Company’s investment in the EBT and Western Asset Liguidity Funds ple (“WALF™) are
current assel invesiments and are siated at fair valee. Changes in fair value ane meognised as fair
value adjustments through the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafis.

(1) Leased assets
At inception the Company assesses agreements that transfer the right to use assets, The assesament
considers whether the arangement is, or contains, a lease based om the substance of the
arrangement. See Note 19 for further details.

(1) Finance leaved asrets
Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are
classified as finance leases, Finance leases are capitalised at commencement of the lease as
asscts at the fair valus of the leased asset, Incremental direct costs, incurred in negotiating and
arranging the lease, are included in the cost of the asset.

Assets are depreciated owver the shorter of the Jease term and the estimated useful life of the
asset. Assets are assessed for impairment at each reporting date. The capital element of lease

obligations is recorded as a liability on inception of the arrangement.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 25

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (comtinued)

(iiy Operating leased assets
Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating
leases, Payments under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Income and Retained

Earnings on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

{iii) Lease incentives
Incentives received to enter into an operating lease are credited to the Statement of Income
and Retained Earnings, to reduce the lease expense, on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

(m) Eipancial instruments
The Company has chosen to adopt Sectons 11 and 12 of FRS 102 i mespect of fnancial
instruments.

Section 11 (Basic Financial Instrumenis) and Section 12 {Cther Financial Instrumenis) were issucd
under FRS 102 and provide guidance for recognising, derecognising, assessing impairment, and
measuring and disclosing financial instruments. Section 11 applics to basic financial instruments,
such as trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, bank loans,
intercompany payables and common and preference shares, Section 12 applies to other more
complex financial instroments and transactions such as derivatives, including currency firtures and
forward foreign exchange contracts,

Basic financial instruments are generally recognised at cost or amortised cost.

Derivatives are complex financial instruments and are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.

in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in Statement of Income and Retained Earnings as
appropriate. The Company has no derivatives at 30 September 2021.

(n) Brovisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably,

Prowisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using & pre-tax rate that reflects curment market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. See Note 17 for firrther details,

Contingent liabilities arise as a result of past events when (i) it 1s not probable that there will be an
outflow of resources of that the amount eannot be reliably measured at the reporting date or (i) the
cxistence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of uncertain future events not
whaolly within the Company's control. Contingent habilities are disclosed in the financial
statements unless the probability of an cutflow is remote or the outflow is immaterial.
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4. Turmover

Tumover, which is stated net of value added tax, represents the amounts receivable for the management
of investment portfolios for clients and an allocation of tumnover from the Company's affiliates where
the Company is responsible for servicing the client.

The geographical location of the clients is analysed as follows:

18 month period ended 12 monith period ended

30 Septernber 2021 31 March 2020

5 5
United Kingdom 19,837,967 8,830,481
United States of Amerca 33,177,206 19062498
Europe {txchding United Kingdom) 20,548,122 12,201,574
Rest of the World 52189370 36,081,403

125,752 665 76,184,956
5. Operating profit

18 morth period ended 12 month period ended
30 Septernber 2021 31 Migrch 2020

5 ]
The operating profit is stated after charging  (crediting) ©
Auditors' remuncration - audil services 241,243 196,730
Auditors' remuneration - CASS andit 16,773 6,199
Lease of office premises 1,401,527 1,696,788
Loss on foreign exchange 151,492 24,598
Interest payable and similar charges - 7245
Depreciation - on tangibde owned fixed asscts 261,832 441911
Depreciation - on tangible fived assets held under finance leases 36,598 24 666
Gain on disposal of tangible owned [xed sasets 2200 -
Inccrest recchvabile (104,777) {313,990)
Income from current assel vestments
- Realised gains - EBT (225,177 {108,450)
- Unrealised gnin (418,684) 266,706

- Gains on imvestments - WALF {48,489) {613,554)
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6. Imformation regarding directors and employees

Employment costs incurred by the Company and included in administrative expenses comprise:

18 month peclod ended 12 month period ended

30 Septemnber 2021 31 March 2020
£ £
Wages and salaries 30,876,675 17473977
Sociel securiy costs 4,311,786 2443109
Restricted stock 1,365,527 160,362
Other pension costs 1,424,573 876477
37,978,561 20,953,925
The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) employed by the Company
during the year was:
18 month peried ended 12 month period ended
30 September 2021 31 March 2020
By sctivity
Partfobio management L 23
Marketing & client services 13 14
Administration 25 24
&2 ]

Aggregate directors' emoluments related to the highest paid director are as follows:

18 month pericd ended 12 month period ended

30 September 2021 31 March 2020
£ £
imolments 2,653,608 1,611,692
Pension contribution 3,846 44,906
Employee deferrad benafis 1,196335 502143

3933 ThY 158740

Retirement benefits are accruing to 1 (2020: 1) director under a defined contribution scheme, During the
period, no share options were exercised (2020: nil).

The emoluments of the other 2 directors (2020: 2) are paid by the Parent or other group companies which
make no recharges to the Company. These two directors are employees and / or directors of the Parent
and / or 2 number of fellow subsidiaries and it is not possible to make an accurale apportionment of their
emoluments in respect of the Company. Accordingly, the above details include no emoluments in respect
of these two directors.

Additionalty, during the year 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 EDIP schemes partially vested and a cash
amount of $447,662 (2020: $173,535) was paid by the Company to the highest paid director.
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7. Share-based payments

During the period, and as a result of the change in ownership to Franklin Resources, Inc., the share-
bascd award programme under Legg Mason, Inc. restricted stock unit plan was replaced by Franklin
Resources, Inc. restricled stock unit plan.

The Parent issucs restricted stock units to certain employees and 10026 vesting will oocur in July
2025 if certain conditions are met. The employee must be in continnous employment with the
Compeny and performance period revemues mmust exceed the performance threshold. Should
performance pericd revenues be less than the performance threshold but more than five times the
base annual net revennes, vesting will occur on a pro-rata basis subject to maximum vesting at
100% and a minimum of (96, Ownership of the restricted stock umits are transferred to the employee
once vested.

8. Incentive plans

The Company has one active EBT for the cmployee deferred incentive plan,

The trustess appointed to “The Western Asset Management Compamy International Employes
Deferred Incentive Plan™ (“EDIP™) are “Intertrust Group™.

There s no cash balance in the current year (2020: $0) held in the EBT. Investments held by the
EBT are disclosed in Note 14.

During the period, awards made from the Legg Mason, Inc. restricted stock unit plan were fully
settled in cash as a result of the change in ownership to Franklin Resources, Inc. and resulted in an
cquity reserve of $43,008. These awards vsually vest between one and four years but were
accelerated due fo the acquisition by Franklin Templeton. The expense related to the awards and
any gains or losses associated with them are recorded in the year in which the awards vest. The
method of settlement of the awards either in cash or the Pareni’s issued restricted stock is at the
discretion of the Western Asset compensation committee,

EDIP awards totalling $2.286,003 were made to senior employees attributable 1o the financial
period ended 30 September 2021 {in May 2020, EDIP awards made for the 2020 financial year:
$1,910,985).

An sccrual for awerds totalling $2,117,269 (2020: $1,861,870) is included in these financial
statements, and this total amount will be contributed to the EDIP, In addition, $345,654 (2020:
$182,490) has been provided in respect of employer's national insurance payable on these awards.

The expense recorded in the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings for the EDIP is $4,035,312
{2020: $1,356,958) and the employer's national insurance on this amounts to $452,641 (2020:
£194,071).

9. Pension
The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The scheme is a Group Personal
Pension Plan which is run and administered by Scoftish Widows, an unrelated third party.

The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the Company to the fund and
amounted to $1,424.573 (2020; $B76,477). At 30 September 2021 there were no pension
contributions in arrears (2020: $0).
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10. Tax on profit
a. Tax on profit
18 month period ended 12 month period ended
30 September 2021 31 March 2000
5 5
Current period tax charge 4,063,865 2482332
Adjstments in respect of prior periods 159,535 309818
Adjmtments in respect of FX difference of prior periods 46948 (33,486)
Current period tax charge 4,270,348 2,758,664
Defirred taxation - current period timing differences 83490 (29,166)
Total tax o profits 4,353,837 2729498

b. Reconcilintion of tax charge

Tax assessed for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 is higher than (2020 higher than) the
glandard rate of carporation tax in the UK for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 19%

(2020: 19%)

Profi before taxation

Expected tax at standard rate of 19% (2020; 19%6)

Effects of :

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Adpstments in respect of prior periods

Adjstments in respect of FX difference of prior periods
Adstments for reduction i corporntion tax rate on timing

differences

Adjstment in respect of current period tax charge

Deferred tax tems
Total period tax charge

18 month period ended 12 month period ended

30 September 2021 31 March 2020
5 5

ZE0TH 12238068

4297937 2325233

15871 29211

159,535 309,818

46,548 {33.486)

(263,299) 135,028

13,355 (7,140)

83,490 (29,166)

4353 837 2729498

The current period tax charge has not been adjusted by group relief from other group companies as no

group rclicf has been granted.
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10. Tax on profit {(comtinued)

&. Deferrad tax
Fixed Assets Employee Total
remuneration
5 5 L3
Asset as at 1 April, 2020 132811 356,148 488 959
Current period (credif)/charge (290,439) 206,949 (83,490)
Asset as at 30 September, 2021 (157,628) 563,097 405 469

The timing differences related to: (i) accelerated capital allowances on fixed assets: and (ii) the issuance
of deferred compensation awards to employees on which a corporate tax deduction can be taken when
the deferred compensation vests and is distributed to participants.

The Directors consider that it is more likely than not that there will be sufficicnt taxable profits in the
future such as io realise the deferred 1ax asset and therefore the asset has been recognised in these
fingncial statements.

d. Tax rate changes

The tax rate for the current year is the same as the prior year as there was no change in the UK
Corporation tax rate, which remained at 19% since 1 April 2017, On the basis that the UK Corporation
tax will remain at 199 from 1 October 2021, the Company’s deferred tax balances have been effected
at the same rate.

11. Dividends

No dividend was declared and paid during the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021. In the pricr
vear ended 31 March 2020, a dividend of £15 million was paid to the former immediate parcnt entity,
Western Asset Management (Cayman) Holdings Limited, equating to $149.99 per ordinary share,
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12. Tangible assets

Communications — Fumiture DOffice. Lensehold

5 5 § ] 5 5
Coxt
As 1 1 April 2020 466,377 4492 100,861 136457 3ETSI0 4584157
Additions 8,113 - - - 3,753,201 3842320
Disposals (235477) = (2,198) (3785,151)  (4,022,821)
As at 30 September 2001 320,024 4492 53,663 136457 384000 4403656
Accumulated depreciation
Ag st | April 2020 27,933 2,006 55212 3,716,040 4,044,191
Cherge for the financial 169,297 1,348 374X =T 450,810
year
Disposals (233,182) - (%198) (3,785,151)  (4,020,531)
As at 30 September 2021 207,048 3,354 90,440 183,628 484,470
Net book value
30 Sepiember 2021 112,976 1,138 82X 136457 3,650,392 3919,185
31 March 2000 195,444 2485 45549 136,457 159,920 539,966

The net book value of tangible assets inclodes an amount of $8,222 (2020: $45,220) in respect of office

equipment held under finance leases.
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13. Debtors
30 Septemiber 31 March
2021 2020
£ s

Amourts faling due within one year ;

Trade debtors 13,886,528 13,065,845

Amounts owed by group underiakings 7,264,550 6,818,647

Other debtors 209,246 286,763

Prepayments and accrued income 608,835 1,033,893

21,969,559 21,209,148

Amounts cwed by group undertakings includes a $6.2 million (2020: $6.1 million) loan to an affiliate.
The loan bears interest at 6-month average US Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus 25bps,
with a maturity date of May 28, 2022, The remaining balance is unsecured, interest free, has no fixed
date of repayment and is repayable on demand,

The Company makes available to all employees interest-free season ticket loans which are repayable
by ten monthly instalments. The balance of $35,260 (2020: $42,579) is included in other debtars.

Amounts falling doe after more than one year from Deferred Tax is $405,469 (2020: $488,959). Seo
Note 10 for further details.

14. Investments

The Company has an investment of $5,333,261 (2020: §3,267,189) in EDIP. This plan is invested ina
range of investment funds managed by Western Assel.

During the year, the EBT generated realised gaing of $225,177 (2020: $108,450), and unrealised gain
of $418,684 (2020 lass of $266,706).

The Company has an investment in the US Dollar fund in the WALF series, The WALF fund is a highly
rated money-market fond and has same day liguidity. The principal investment objective of the fund is
the preservation of capital. This investment is camied at fair value and at the balance sheet date was
$27,986,055 (2020: $30,862,088). The share class in which the Company is invested, is a no-fiee share
class, thereby maximising the Company's return. The Company provides investment management
services to the fund.

The Company classifies its financial assets within the ERT, which are shares and other variable-yield
sccurities at fair value through Statement of Income and Retained Earnings.

The Company classifies its financial assets within WALF at fair value throngh Statement of Income
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14, Invesiments (contimeed)

Financial assets designated at fair value through Statement of Income and Retained Famings at
inception are those thal are manaped and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis.
Information about these financial assets is provided internally on a fair value basis to the Company's
key management personnel. The Company's strategy is to invest in funds, designated at fair value
through Statement of Income and Retained Eamings upon initial recognition.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based on quoted bid prices on the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. As the funds
invested in by the Company are priced daily based on net asset value (NAV) with subscriptions and
redemptions occurring at NAY, the funds are considered 1o be measured at a quoted price in an aclive
market.

Net gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of fair-valved financial assets, are presented
in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings, together with related interest and dividend income
within “Interest receivable and similar income™ in the period in which they arise.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted bid prices at the
balance sheet date and these securities are included in (2).

The Company closely monitors the valuation of assets in markets that may become less liquid.
Determining whether & market is active requires the exercise of judgment and is determined based on
facts and circumstances of the market for the invesiment being measured. The Company does not hold
investments where the investments have no active market.

The Company follows the FRS 102 hierarchy 1o estimate fair value:

(a) The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market.

(b) When quoted prices are unavailable, the price of a recent transaction for an identical asset
provides evidence of fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances or a significant lapse of time since the transaction took place.

{c) If the market for the asset is not active and recent transactions of an identical asset on their own
are not a good cstimate of fair value, an entity estimates the fair value by using a valuation
technique.
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14, Investments (contimued)

The tables below present investments carried at fair value.

2021 (8) {b) {c) Total

Fair value through profi and loss $ L3 L3 5

- WALF 27,986,055 - - 27.986,055

-EBT 5,333,261 5,333,261
Total assets 313319316 . . 33319316

2020 () @) (©) Total

Fair value through profit and loss 5 5 5 ]

- WALF 30,862,088 - - 30,862,088

-EBRT 3267189 3.267,189
Total assets 129277 = - 34129277

During the period ended 30 September 2021 and year ended 31 March 2020, the Company did not hold
investments categorised as (b) or (c) and correspondingly there were no transfers involving (b) or (¢).

15. Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Companys activities expose it to a variety of financial risk: market risk (including cumrency risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and lignidity risk. The
Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and secks fo minimise potential adverse effects on the Company”s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by an internal risk management department adhering to principles and
policies approved by the board of directors, The Compamy has written principles for overall risk
management, a3 well as written policies eovering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, inlerest
rate risk, credit risk use of derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liguidity.
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15. Financial risk management {continued)
(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Company, being US Dollar functional, and operating internationally, is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily to Sterling, Euro and Yen.
Foreign exchange risk arises from fiture commercial transactions and recognised assets and
Liabilities which are denominated n a currency that is not the éntity’s functional curréncy. The
estimated fair value of derivative instruments reflects the estimated amount the Company wounld
receive or pay in an arm's length transaction. The amount is determined wsing quoted prices
from independent third parties. During the year the Company mitigated its foreign exchange risk
by the use of derivative instruments administered by an affiliate, specifically currency forward
contracts. During the year, the Company made a foreign exchange loss of $151,492 (2020: loss
of $24,398).

(i) Price risk
The Company’s investments held by the EBT are diversified in accordance with the guidelines
of the EBT. As all investmenis are held by the EBT, the risk and reward of mvestment returns
are borne entirely by the EBT's participants, the Company i not exposed to price risk relating
to its EBT. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk. The Company is indirectly
exposed price risk as revenues may fluctuate based on assets under management, interest rates
and the returns of the fixed income markets,

(b} Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on 8 Company-wide basis. Credit risk ariscs from cash deposits with banks
and financial institutions, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments, credit exposures to
clients from outstanding fee receivables and loans made to group Companies. All the Company's
with a Moody's rating of at least Baal, or with a Standard and Poor's rating of at least BBB+. The
Company asscsscs the credit quality of clicots, taking into account their financial statements,
regulatory position, past experience and other factors. Intercompany loans, including existing
lpans, may be considered only after assessing the impact projected cash flows under stress testing
scenariod and ensuring the Company”’s minimum liquidity tolerance levels are maintained.

(c) Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that cash may not be available at a reasonable cost to pay obligations when
due. The Company performs monthly cash liquidity monitoring against set limits to ensure funds
are available to meet such requirements.

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Company's cnly significant interest-bearing asset is cash, the Company's income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
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16. Creditors
30 September 31 March
2021 200
$ -1
Amounts owed to group undertakings 2208475 3,503,823
Obligations under finance leases 12,626 34,949
Texation and social security 5.349,166 3,827,531
Accrunk and deferred income: 9,600,665 10,252,697
17170932 18215,000
30 September 31 March
201 200
5 -1
Amounts falling doe after more than one year:
Obligations under finance leases - 23551
- 23,651

The net finance lease obligations to which the Company is committed are:

30 Scptember 3] March
2021 2020
L4 £
In one year or less 12,6826 34,49
Between cne and two years - 23651

S . — ]

The total value of finance leases repayable by instalments, any part of which falls due after more than
five years is nil {2020: nil).

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and
are repayable on demand.
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17. Provisions for liabilities

The Company is a tenant of 10 Exchange square and a new lease was signed in April 2020 to occupy
the 11th floor, In the prior year and under the old lease, the Company had vacant office space on two
floors and entered into sub-letting arrangements which ceasad when the new leass became effective.

The new lease commenced on 1% May 2020 with a term of 10 years. There is a clause in the tenancy
agreement relating to dilapidation work which must be underiaken before the property is vacated. The
amounts provided are based on the current estimate of future costs determined on the basis of the present
condition of the property.

For the period ended 30 Sﬂptmn’n-:rzﬂzl a provision of $101,043 (2020: $599,055) has been made for
estimated costs of the dilapidation repairs pertaining to Jevel 11 at 10 Exchange Square and pertaining
to level 10 in respect of the prior year. At 30 September 2021, the dilapidations provision of level 10
was written down in full as the obligation to retumn the property to its original condition was released by
the landlord. The decrease in provision is fully recognised in the Statement of Income and Retained
Earnings during the period ended 30 September 2021.

30 September 31 March
2021 2000
H s
Carrying amount at 1 April 2020 and 2019 (26,622 1,623200
Amounts reclassified from accruak and deferred incoms = -
Amounts charged{(utfsed) during the period 24,332 (48,101}
Amounts released during the period (549.910) (34847T)
Bakance st 30 September 2021 and 31 March 2020 101,044 626622
18. Called up share capital
30 Seplember 31 March
2021 2030
] 5
Issued, called up and fully peid
100,010 {2020: 100,010) crdinary shares of S1 each 100,010 100,010
10,950,000 (2020 10,950,000) redeemakie preference shares of $1 10,950,000 10,950,000
each
11,050,010 11,050,010

The preference shares carry no rights to participate in the profits of the Company, and no voting rights.
The Company may redeem the prefercnce shares at par, at any time subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006. On redemption, and at the discretion of the Directors, the preference shares may
be converted to ordinary shares of similar par value.
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19. Financial commitments

The Company had the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

for each of the following periods:
30 September 31 March
201 2m0
¥ 5

Land and buildings payments dos
Mot lter than one year 1,235,173 -
Later than one vear and not later than fve vears 4,540,693 =

6,175,866 =

The Company previcusly occupied office space across multiple floors, which expired in March 2020.
[mmediately thereafter, the Company signed a 10-year lease to occupy the 11® floor, which was effective
May 2020, and under the terms of which the Company has an initial rent-free period to 31 Jamary 2022,
The rent payable under the lease will be subject to review in May 2025,

Provision for rental payable was made in the financial statements during the rent-firee period, and this is
being released to the Statement of Income and Retained Eamnings so as to spread this benefit eventy over
the period of the lease.

20. Related party disclosures

The Company is exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other companies that are wholly
owned within, and reported on the consolidated financial staternents of, the group.

Consolidated financial statements of' the group, in which the Company is included are publicly available,
as disclosed in Mote 21.

21. Controlling parties

The immediate parent undertaking is Legg Mason Global Holdings Ltd.

The ultimate controlling party is Franklin Resources, Inc., a Company incorporated and registered in the
United States of America and listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

The cnly group into which the Company's results are consolidated is the group that is headed by Franklin
Resources, [nc.. Copies of the consolidated financial staternents of Franklin Resources, Inc. are available
from One Franklin Parkway, San Mateo, CA, 94403, United States.

Further information can be found on the Franklin Resources, Inc. website "www.franklinresources.com"
under "Tnvestor Relations™.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Western
Asset Total Return Opportunities

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Western Asset Total Return
Opportunities (a sub-trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds) (the “ Fund” ), which comprise
the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments, as of March
31, 2021, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year
then ended.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal
control relevant to the Fund"s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Western Asset Total Return Opportunities as of March 31,
2021, and the results of its operations and changes in its net assets for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.
PricewaterhouseCoopers

May 27, 2021
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Report of independent auditors

To BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Western
Asset Total Return Opportunities

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Western Asset Total Return
Opportunities (a sub-trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds) (the "Fund™), which comprise the
statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments, as of March 31,
2022, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year
then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial
statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Fund as of March 31, 2022, and the results of its
operations and changes in its net assets for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors”™ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Fund and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial
statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund®"s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

May 26, 2022
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Independent auditors®™ report to the members of Western Asset Management Company Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion, Western Asset Management Company Limited"s financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the company®"s affairs as at 30 September 2021
and of its profit for the 18 month period then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “ The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” , and
applicable law); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report and financial
statements (the “ Annual Report” ), which comprise: the Statement of financial position as
at 30 September 2021; the Statement of income and retained earnings for the period then
ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs
(UK)” ) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in
the Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC"s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the company®s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least

twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors® use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is
not a guarantee as to the company®s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern
are described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the
financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. ITf we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors® Report, we also considered whether the
disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us
also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors®™ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information
given in the Strategic report and Directors® Report for the period ended 30 September 2021
is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic
report and Directors®™ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors® responsibilities in respect of the
financial statements, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors® report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal
risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to breaches of UK regulatory
principles, such as those governed by the Financial Conduct Authority, and we considered the
extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We
also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management®s incentives and
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of
override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to manipulation
of financial data to present more favourable financial results through posting inappropriate
journal entries. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

Reviewing correspondence with the Financial Conduct Authority in relation to compliance
with laws and regulations;

Discussions with management, including consideration of known or suspected instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud;

Reviewing relevant meeting minutes, including those of the directors;

Understanding of management®s internal controls designed to prevent and detect
irregularities;

Identification and testing of journal entries, in particular journal entries posted with
unusual account combinations; and

Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing or
extent of our testing;

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely
to become aware of instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not
closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also, the
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is

located on the FRC"s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditors® report.
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Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s
members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
certain disclosures of directors® remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Shujaat Khan (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

Date: 17 Jan 2022
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